

 


 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the  


Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 


 
 


AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 


June 17, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Roll Call 


 
4. Public Hearing 


 
A. Consider Resolution #19-20 for approval of a street name change of 120th Avenue 


(West Frontage Road) to 122nd Avenue within the Village. 
 


5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 
from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 


 
6. Administrator’s Report 


 
7. New Business 


 
A. Consider Plan Commission Recommendation and approve Ordinance #19-13 for 


Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 as it 
relates to vacant Lots 1 and 3 of CSM 2893 generally located east of 9201 Wilmot 
Road to correctly identify field delineated wetlands and update Appendix 10-3. 


B. Consider Plan Commission Recommendation and approve Ordinance #19-14 for a 
Zoning Map Amendment to rezone the field delineated wetlands relating to vacant Lots 
1 and 3 of CSM 2893 generally located east of 9201 Wilmot Road into C-1, Lowland 
Resource Conservancy District. 


C. Consider Plan Commission Recommendation and approve Certified Survey Map for 
the creation of two properties generally located on the northwest corner of 109th Street 
and 80th Avenue. 


D. Consider Plan Commission Recommendation and approve Lot Line Adjustment 
between properties located at 9154 30th Avenue and 9145 32nd Avenue. 


E. Consider Plan Commission Recommendation and approve Ordinance #19-15 Zoning 
Text Amendment to amend Sections 420-148 B (119) and (120) related to specific 
conditional use permit standards for utility substations in the Village. 


F. Consider approval of partial releases to several recorded documents related to 
properties associated with The Vista at Creekside apartment development. 







Village Board Agenda 
May 6, 2019 
 
 


2 
 


G. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so 
requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Ordinances of Business and 
considered at this point on the agenda.) 


1) Minutes of Meeting – June 3, 2019 
2) Consider and approve The Cottages at Village Green Phase 2, Letter of Credit 


Reduction Request No. 4. 


8. Village Board Comments 
 


9. Adjournment 







Consider Resolution #19-20 for approval of a street name change of 120th Avenue 


(West Frontage Road) to 122nd Avenue within the Village. 


Recommendation: Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board change the official 


street name of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) to 122nd Avenue (West Frontage Road).  


 


 


 


  







VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider a street name change of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) to 122nd Avenue 


(West Frontage Road) within the Village. 


The recent business activity in the State Line 94 Corporate Park has brought the Village 


attention to a naming conflict that both Frontage Roads on either side of I94/41 in the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie share the same name, 120th Avenue. The Village staff 


recommends that changing the name of the West Frontage Road is the optimal way to 


correct the matter and reduce confusion for future addressing. 


The impacts to renaming the West Frontage Road from 120th Avenue to 122nd Avenue 


involve the removal and replacement of street name signs, which will be handled by the 


Village Public Works Department. No official addresses will be affected by this change.  
 


On May 6, 2019 the Village Board adopted Resolution #19-12 to initiate the change and 


referred the change to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation.  In addition, 


the Village Board set the required public hearing to consider the change on June 17, 2019. 


 


Recommendation: Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board change the official 


street name of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) to 122nd Avenue (West Frontage Road).  


 


 







 



Akramer

Text Box

1967



Akramer

Text Box

2015



Akramer

Text Box

104 Street



Akramer

Stamp



Akramer

Stamp



Akramer

Stamp



Akramer

Callout

120 Avenue



Akramer

Callout

120 Avenue



Akramer

Callout

120 Avenue



Akramer

Callout

  Proposed 122 Avenue



Akramer

Highlight



Akramer

Highlight



Akramer

Highlight







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #19-20 


 
RESOLUTION TO CHANGE THE OFFICIAL STREET NAME AND NOTIFYING PROPERTY 


OWNERS IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE,  
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 
The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Article IV of the Village Ordinances. 


WHEREAS, the reconstruction and increased business activity along Interstate 94/41 
has required the Village to re-examine the naming conflict from both frontage roads caused 
by sharing the same name, 120th Avenue. The Village staff recommends that changing the 
name of the West Frontage Road is the optimal way to address the mater; and 


WHEREAS, no existing mailing addresses would be affected by the proposed street 
name change to 122nd Avenue; and 


WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees will hold a Public Hearing to consider said 
changes on June 17, 2019. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of Trustees, as follows: 


1. That the Village Board of Trustees hereby initiates and petitions to change an official 
street name and addresses within the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 


Adopted this the 17th day of June 2019. 
 


        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 
 
 


______________________________ 
______________________________  John P. Steinbrink 
Jane C. Snell                                   Village President 
Village Clerk 
 
 
Posted:  __________________________ 
 
19-20 Street Name Change West Frontage Rd 
Dev1904-014 







THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSES AT THE SAME TIME; HOWEVER, 


SEPARATE ACTION IS REQUIRED 


Consider Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Ord. #19-13) for the request of Kevin Risch, 


P.E. of Clark Dietz, on behalf of the Prairie Holdings LLC, property owner of the vacant property 


generally located at southwest corner of Wilmot Road (CTH C) and 88th Avenue (CTH H) to 


correctly identify the field delineated wetlands, excepting the wetlands that have been determined 


by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to be exempt, into the Park, Recreational and 


Other Opens Space lands with a field verified wetland land use designation on the Village 2035 


Land Use Plan Map 9.9; and to update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 


2035 Comprehensive Plan to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 


Recommendation:  On June 10, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing, approved 


approve Plan Commission Resolution #19-07 and recommended that the Village Board approve 


the Comprehensive Plan Amendments as presented in the June 17, 2019 Village Staff Report. 


 


Consider a Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-14) for the request of Kevin Risch, P.E. of 


Clark Dietz, on behalf of the Prairie Holdings LLC, property owner of the vacant property generally 


located at southwest corner of Wilmot Road (CTH C) and 88th Avenue (CTH H) to rezone the field 


delineated wetlands, excepting the wetlands that have been determined by the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources to be exempt, into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy 


District. 


Recommendation:  On June 10, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 


recommended that the Village Board approve the Zoning Map Amendments as presented in the 


June 10, 2019 Village Staff Report. 







VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Ord. #19-13) for the request of Kevin Risch, 


P.E. of Clark Dietz, on behalf of the Prairie Holdings LLC, property owner of the vacant property 


generally located at southwest corner of Wilmot Road (CTH C) and 88th Avenue (CTH H) to 


correctly identify the field delineated wetlands, excepting the wetlands that have been determined 


by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to be exempt, into the Park, Recreational and 


Other Opens Space lands with a field verified wetland land use designation on the Village 2035 


Land Use Plan Map 9.9; and to update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 


2035 Comprehensive Plan to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 


Consider a Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-14) for the request of Kevin Risch, P.E. of 


Clark Dietz, on behalf of the Prairie Holdings LLC, property owner of the vacant property generally 


located at southwest corner of Wilmot Road (CTH C) and 88th Avenue (CTH H) to rezone the field 


delineated wetlands, excepting the wetlands that have been determined by the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources to be exempt, into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy 


District. 


THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSES AT THE SAME TIME; HOWEVER, 


SEPARATE ACTION IS REQUIRED 


On February 4, 2019, the Village Board conditionally approved of a Master Conceptual Plan for 


the development of three limited use industrial related buildings and associated site 


improvements on the vacant 17.6 acres of land located east of 9201 Wilmot.  


On March 18, 2019, the Village Board conditionally approved a Certified Survey Map, 


Easement Vacation documents and an Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding 


including Site Development Plans to create three (3) properties, to grade the properties and 


install private improvements to service the new lots.  The Certified Survey Map #2893 has since 


been recorded and work has commenced. 


Conditions of said approvals required that upon obtaining necessary Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources (WI DNR) and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) approvals the wetlands on 


Lots 1 and 3 of CSM 2893 were to be placed into the Village wetland classifications on the Village 


2035 Land Use Plan Map and the Village Zoning Map.   


The WI DNR as determined that wetland areas A, B,  C and I on Lot 3 to be artificial wetlands 


pursuant to the attached August 2, 2018 letter and furthermore, the ACOE will not be taking 


jurisdiction pursuant to the attached letter dated March 4, 2019 on the same wetlands.   


Therefore, Wetlands H and J will remain as shown on CSM 2893 and these wetland areas are 


included in the following amendments: 


1. Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Ord #19-13) to correctly identify the field 


delineated wetlands H and J as shown on CSM 2893 into the Park, Recreational and Other 


Opens Space lands with a field verified wetland land use designation on the Village 2035 


Land Use Plan Map 9.9; and to update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie 


Wisconsin, 2035 Comprehensive Plan to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land 


Use Plan Map 9.9. 


2. Zoning Map Amendments (Ord #19-14) to rezone the field delineated wetlands H and 


J into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District. 


RECOMMENDATIONS 


Item B:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Comprehensive Plan 


Amendments as presented. 


Item C:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board Village Board approve the Zoning 


Map Amendments as presented. 







ORD. # 19-13 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN  


2035 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 390 OF THE  


VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE 


BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, Kenosha 
County, Wisconsin, hereby approves the following amendments to the Village 2035 Land 
Use Plan Map 9.9 Lots 1 and 3 of CSM 2893 generally located east of 9201 Wilmot Road and 
further identified as a part of Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-084-0104: 


1. The field delineated wetlands as shown and legally described on Lots 1 and 3 
of CSM 2893 are hereby placed within the Park, Recreational and Other Opens 
Space lands with a field verified wetland land use designation on the Village 
2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 


2. Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 
Comprehensive Plan is being amended and updated to reflect the above noted 
changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9.  


The Village Community Development Director is hereby directed to record these 
Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan on the appropriate pages of said Plan and to 
update Appendix A in Chapter 390 of the Village Municipal Code to include said 
amendments. 
 


Adopted this 17th day of June 2019. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 


 
 
  
John P. Steinbrink 
Village President 


  
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk 
 
Ayes: ___ Nayes:  ___    Absent: ____ 


 
Posted:    
 
Ord #19-13 


CODE1903-001 







 


 


 
 


ORD. # 19-14 
 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 420-13 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 


 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, 


Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the Official Village Zoning Map is hereby amended 
as follows: 
 
The properties known as Lots 1 and 3 of CSM 2893 generally located east of 9201 Wilmot 
Road and located in U.S. Public Land Survey Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of 
the 4th Principal Meridian, in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin and 
further identified as a part of Tax Parcel Number 92-4-122-084-0104 are hereby rezoned as 
follows: the wetland areas as shown and legally described on Lots 1 and 3 of said CSM are 
hereby rezoned into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District. 


The Village Zoning Administrator is hereby directed to record this Zoning Map Amendment 
on the appropriate sheet of the Official Village Zoning Map and Appendix B in Chapter 420 of 
the Village Municipal Code shall be updated to include said amendment. 


Adopted this 17th day of June, 2019. 
 


VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 


_________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 
Village President 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk 
 
Posted:____________ 
 
14-Prairie Holdings Wetland 
CODE1903-002 







pherrick

Typewritten Text

Document #1841598Recorded 5-13-19



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text































































DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
ST. PAUL DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS 


180 FIFTH STREET EAST, SUITE 700 
ST. PAUL, MN  55101-1678 


                  
                              
REPLY TO ATTENTION OF  
REGULATORY BRANCH 


 
Regulatory File No. 2016-03639-JMB 
 
 
Clark Dietz Inc. for O.C. Holdings, LLC 
c/o Brandon Flunker 
625 57th Street, 6th Floor 
Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140 
 
Dear Mr. Flunker:  
 
 This letter is in response to your request for an approved jurisdictional determination for 
Wetlands A, B, C, and I on the 9201 Wilmot Road property. The project site is located in Section 
8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. The review area for our 
jurisdictional determination is identified on the enclosed figures, labeled MVP-2016-03639-JMB 
Page 1 of 3  through 3 of 3. 


  
The review area contains no waters of the United States subject to Corps of Engineers 


(Corps) jurisdiction. Therefore, you are not required to obtain Department of the Army 
authorization to discharge dredged or fill material within this area. The rationale for this 
determination is provided in the enclosed Approved Jurisdictional Determination form. This 
determination is only valid for the review area shown on the enclosed figures.  
 


If you object to this approved jurisdictional determination, you may request an administrative 
appeal under Corps regulations at 33 CFR 331. Enclosed you will find a Notification of Appeal 
Process (NAP) fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) form. If you request to appeal this 
determination, you must submit a completed RFA form to the Mississippi Valley Division Office 
at the address shown on the form. 
 


In order for an RFA to be accepted by the Corps, the Corps must determine that it is 
complete, that it meets the criteria for appeal under 33 CFR 331.5, and that it has been received 
by the Division Office within 60 days of the date of the enclosed NAP. It is not necessary to 
submit an RFA form to the division office if you do not object to the determination in this letter 
 


This approved jurisdictional determination may be relied upon for five years from the date of 
this letter. However, the Corps reserves the right to review and revise the boundary in response 
to changing site conditions, information that was not considered during our initial review, or off-
site activities that could indirectly alter the extent of wetlands and other resources on-site. This 
determination may be renewed at the end of the five year period provided you submit a written 
request and our staff are able to verify that the limits established during the original 
determination are still accurate. 


 
 
 
 
 
 



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text

4 March 2019



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text







Regulatory Branch (File No. 2016-03639-JMB) 
 


 
Page 2 of 2 


 


If you have any questions, please contact Jonathan Bakken in our Hayward office at  
(651) 290-5884 or jonathan.m.bakken@usace.army.mil. In any correspondence or inquiries, 
please refer to the Regulatory file number shown above. 


 
Sincerely, 


 
 
 
Jonathan M. Bakken 
Project Manager 
 


 
Enclosures  
Notification of Appeal Process (NAP) fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) Form 
Approved jurisdictional determination 
 
cc:  Kevin Risch, Clark Dietz, Inc. (kevin.risch@clarkdietz.com) 
  Travis Schroeder, WDNR (Travis.Schroeder@wisconsin.gov) 
  Dave Doro, OC Holdings, LLC (krddist@aol.com) 







b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text

MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 1 of 3



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text







b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text

MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 2 of 3



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text







b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text

MVP-2016-03639-JMB Page 3 of 3



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb

Typewritten Text



b6oprjmb

Oval



b6oprjmb

Oval



b6oprjmb

Oval



b6oprjmb

Oval







   
   


APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION FORM 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 


 
This form should be completed by following the instructions provided in Section IV of the JD Form Instructional Guidebook. 
 
SECTION I:  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A.   REPORT COMPLETION DATE FOR APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD):  4 March 2019 
 
B.   ST PAUL, MN DISTRICT OFFICE, FILE NAME, AND NUMBER:  2016-03639-JMB  
 
C.   PROJECT LOCATION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:         


State: Wisconsin   County/parish/borough:     Kenosha  City: Pleasant Prairie 
Center coordinates of site (lat/long in degree decimal format):  Lat. 42.55762° N, Long. -89.91494° W.  
           Universal Transverse Mercator:       
Name of nearest waterbody: Unnamed stream 
Name of watershed or Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 07120004 (8-digit HUC) 


 Check if map/diagram of review area and/or potential jurisdictional areas is/are available upon request.  
 Check if other sites (e.g., offsite mitigation sites, disposal sites, etc…) are associated with this action and are recorded on a 


different JD form.     
 
D.   REVIEW PERFORMED FOR SITE EVALUATION (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 


 Office (Desk) Determination.  Date: 31 January 2019 
 Field Determination.  Date(s):       


 
SECTION II:  SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
A.  RHA SECTION 10 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION. 
 
There are no “navigable waters of the U.S.” within Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 329) in the review 
area. 
 
B.  CWA SECTION 404 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION.  
 
There are no“waters of the U.S.” within Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 328) in the review area. 
 
 1. Waters of the U.S.:  N/A 
 
 2.  Non-regulated waters/wetlands (check if applicable):1 
   Potentially jurisdictional waters and/or wetlands were assessed within the review area and determined to be not jurisdictional.  


Explain:  This Jurisdictional Determination is for Wetlands B (approximately 0.02 acres) and Wetland C 
(approximately 0.06 acres) only. Wetlands A and I have been determined to not be a Waters of the U.S. as 
they are wetlands formed on the bottom of man-made ditches constructed in uplands. Corps staff 
determined that Wetlands B and C are located in closed depressions surrounded by previously developed 
commercial property. The wetlands are approximately 0.2 miles from an unnamed stream. The delineated 
wetlands occur in small depressions that collect surface water from the surrounding landscape, and were 
likely formed as slightly lower basins of fill, coninciding with construction of the adjacent industrial 
facility. The wetlands do not have any unbroken surface or shallow subsurface connections to the nearest 
unnamed stream, and are not mapped within the 100-year flood plain. The wetlands are not adjacent 
(bordering, contiguous, or neighboring) to any other WOUS and are not separated from other WOUS by 
man-made dikes or barriers, natural river berms, or beach dunes. Due to the distance between these 
wetlands and the nearest tributary there is no science-based inference (ex. does not support life cycles of 
amphibians or anadromous and catadramous fish) that supports an ecological connection. Additionally, 
there is no link to interstate or foreign commerce and they are not used by interstate or foreign travelers 
for recreation or other purposes. These wetlands do no produce fish or shellfish that could be taken and 
sold in interstate or foreign commerce, and are not known to be used for industrial purposes by industries 
in interstate commerce. The waterbodies have been determined to be non-jurisdictional under the Clean 
Water Act because the wetlands lack connections and/or relationships sufficient to serve as a basis for 
jurisdiction. Therefore, the Corps has determined that Wetland B and Wetland C are hydrologically 
isolated and are not regulated by the Corps under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.  


 
SECTION III:  CWA ANALYSIS 
A. TNWs AND WETLANDS ADJACENT TO TNWs:  N/A 
 
                                                 
1 Supporting documentation is presented in Section III.F. 







 


 


 


2 


B. CHARACTERISTICS OF TRIBUTARY (THAT IS NOT A TNW) AND ITS ADJACENT WETLANDS (IF ANY):  N/A 
 
C. SIGNIFICANT NEXUS DETERMINATION:  N/A  
 
D. DETERMINATIONS OF JURISDICTIONAL FINDINGS. THE SUBJECT WATERS/WETLANDS ARE (CHECK ALL 


THAT APPLY):  N/A 
 
E. ISOLATED [INTERSTATE OR INTRA-STATE] WATERS, INCLUDING ISOLATED WETLANDS, THE USE, 


DEGRADATION OR DESTRUCTION OF WHICH COULD AFFECT INTERSTATE COMMERCE, INCLUDING ANY 
SUCH WATERS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):  N/A 


 
F. NON-JURISDICTIONAL WATERS, INCLUDING WETLANDS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 
  If potential wetlands were assessed within the review area, these areas did not meet the criteria in the 1987 Corps of Engineers 


Wetland Delineation Manual and/or appropriate Regional Supplements.   
    Review area included isolated waters with no substantial nexus to interstate (or foreign) commerce.  


 Prior to the Jan 2001 Supreme Court decision in “SWANCC,” the review area would have been regulated based solely on the 
“Migratory Bird Rule” (MBR).   


  Waters do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such a finding is required for jurisdiction.  Explain:        
  Other (explain, if not covered above):        
 
 Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area, where the sole potential basis of jurisdiction is the MBR 


factors (i.e., presence of migratory birds, presence of endangered species, use of water for irrigated agriculture), using best professional 
judgment (check all that apply): 


  Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet     width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres.        
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres. List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands: 0.08 acres.         


 
Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area that do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such 
a finding is required for jurisdiction (check all that apply): 


 Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet,      width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres. 
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres.  List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands:      acres. 


 
 
SECTION IV:  DATA SOURCES. 
A.  SUPPORTING DATA.  Data reviewed for JD (check all that apply - checked items shall be included in case file and, where checked 


and requested, appropriately reference sources below): 
 Maps, plans, plots or plat submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant:      
 Data sheets prepared/submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant.  


  Office concurs with data sheets/delineation report.   
  Office does not concur with data sheets/delineation report.   


 Data sheets prepared by the Corps:      
 Corps navigable waters’ study:      
 U.S. Geological Survey Hydrologic Atlas:      


  USGS NHD data.   
  USGS 8 and 12 digit HUC maps.   


 U.S. Geological Survey map(s). Cite scale & quad name: 1:24K - Pleasant Prairie 
 USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey. Citation: NRCS soils data 
 National wetlands inventory map(s).  Cite name:      
 State/Local wetland inventory map(s): Wisconsin Wetland Inventory 
 FEMA/FIRM maps:      
 100-year Floodplain Elevation is:     (National Geodectic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
 Photographs:  Aerial (Name & Date):      


    or  Other (Name & Date): Site photos from delineation report dated 25 June 2018 
 Previous determination(s).  File no. and date of response letter:      
 Applicable/supporting case law:      
 Applicable/supporting scientific literature:      
 Other information (please specify): WDNR Exemption Letter dated 2 August 2018 


 







 


 


 


3 


B.  ADDITIONAL COMMENTS TO SUPPORT JD:   The Corps has determined that wetlands B and C onsite are 
hydrologically isolated, and are therefore not regulated by the Corps under Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act. 







   
   


APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION FORM 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 


 
This form should be completed by following the instructions provided in Section IV of the JD Form Instructional Guidebook. 
 
SECTION I:  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A.   REPORT COMPLETION DATE FOR APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD):  7 February 2019 
 
B.   ST PAUL, MN DISTRICT OFFICE, FILE NAME, AND NUMBER:  2016-03639-JMB  
 
C.   PROJECT LOCATION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:         


State: Wisconsin   County/parish/borough:     Kenosha  City: Pleasant Prairie 
Center coordinates of site (lat/long in degree decimal format):  Lat. 42.55762° N, Long. -89.91494° W.  
           Universal Transverse Mercator:       
Name of nearest waterbody: Unnamed stream 
Name of watershed or Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC): 07120004 (8-digit HUC) 


 Check if map/diagram of review area and/or potential jurisdictional areas is/are available upon request.  
 Check if other sites (e.g., offsite mitigation sites, disposal sites, etc…) are associated with this action and are recorded on a 


different JD form.     
 
D.   REVIEW PERFORMED FOR SITE EVALUATION (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 


 Office (Desk) Determination.  Date: 31 January 2019 
 Field Determination.  Date(s):       


 
SECTION II:  SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
A.  RHA SECTION 10 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION. 
 
There are no “navigable waters of the U.S.” within Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 329) in the review 
area. 
 
B.  CWA SECTION 404 DETERMINATION OF JURISDICTION.  
 
There are no“waters of the U.S.” within Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction (as defined by 33 CFR part 328) in the review area. 
 
 1. Waters of the U.S.:  N/A 
 
 2.  Non-regulated waters/wetlands (check if applicable):1 
   Potentially jurisdictional waters and/or wetlands were assessed within the review area and determined to be not jurisdictional.  


Explain:  The review area contains 4 wetlands (A, B, C, and I) totaling approximately 0.24 acres in size. 
Wetlands B (0.02 acres) and C (0.06 acres) have been determined to be isolated. This Jurisdictional 
Determination form is for Wetland A (approximately 0.15 acres) and Wetland I (approximately 0.01 acres) 
only. Wetlands A and I were determined to be stormwater conveyance features that were constructed in 
uplands sometime between 1970 and 1980, coinciding with construction of an adjacent industrial facility. 
Wetlands A and I formed on the bottom of man-made ditches and are not waters of the U.S. This was 
confirmed by reviewing aerial photography dated 1937, 1970, 1980, 2015, WWI, and NRCS web soil survey 
data. Wetlands A and I appear to have been constructed to convey water to the east, away from the site. 
Information provided within the permit application and the 2018 Wetland Delineation Report indicates 
that the subject ditches do not have a relatively permanent flow of water and are not Waters of the United 
States.  


 
SECTION III:  CWA ANALYSIS 
A. TNWs AND WETLANDS ADJACENT TO TNWs:  N/A 
 
B. CHARACTERISTICS OF TRIBUTARY (THAT IS NOT A TNW) AND ITS ADJACENT WETLANDS (IF ANY):  N/A 
 
C. SIGNIFICANT NEXUS DETERMINATION:  N/A  
 
D. DETERMINATIONS OF JURISDICTIONAL FINDINGS. THE SUBJECT WATERS/WETLANDS ARE (CHECK ALL 


THAT APPLY):  N/A 
 
E. ISOLATED [INTERSTATE OR INTRA-STATE] WATERS, INCLUDING ISOLATED WETLANDS, THE USE, 


DEGRADATION OR DESTRUCTION OF WHICH COULD AFFECT INTERSTATE COMMERCE, INCLUDING ANY 
SUCH WATERS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):  N/A 


                                                 
1 Supporting documentation is presented in Section III.F. 







 


 


 


2 


 
F. NON-JURISDICTIONAL WATERS, INCLUDING WETLANDS (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 
  If potential wetlands were assessed within the review area, these areas did not meet the criteria in the 1987 Corps of Engineers 


Wetland Delineation Manual and/or appropriate Regional Supplements.   
    Review area included isolated waters with no substantial nexus to interstate (or foreign) commerce.  


 Prior to the Jan 2001 Supreme Court decision in “SWANCC,” the review area would have been regulated based solely on the 
“Migratory Bird Rule” (MBR).   


  Waters do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such a finding is required for jurisdiction.  Explain:        
  Other (explain, if not covered above):  The review area identifed on the enclosed figures contains four delineated 
wetlands. Of the four wetlands, two (Wetland B and C) have been determined to be isolated. Wetlands A (0.15 acres) 
and I (0.01 acres) for which this form has been prepared formed on the bottom of man-made ditches constructed onsite. 
While the ditches may hold water during storm events, they do not carry reltively permanent flows of water and do not 
drain a water of the United States. The ditch wetlands should not be considered Waters of the United States. 
 
 Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area, where the sole potential basis of jurisdiction is the MBR 


factors (i.e., presence of migratory birds, presence of endangered species, use of water for irrigated agriculture), using best professional 
judgment (check all that apply): 


  Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet     width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres.        
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres. List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands:  acres.         


 
Provide acreage estimates for non-jurisdictional waters in the review area that do not meet the “Significant Nexus” standard, where such 
a finding is required for jurisdiction (check all that apply): 


 Non-wetland waters (i.e., rivers, streams):      linear feet,      width (ft). 
 Lakes/ponds:      acres. 
 Other non-wetland waters:      acres.  List type of aquatic resource:      . 
 Wetlands: 0.16 acres. 


 
 
SECTION IV:  DATA SOURCES. 
A.  SUPPORTING DATA.  Data reviewed for JD (check all that apply - checked items shall be included in case file and, where checked 


and requested, appropriately reference sources below): 
 Maps, plans, plots or plat submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant:      
 Data sheets prepared/submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant.  


  Office concurs with data sheets/delineation report.   
  Office does not concur with data sheets/delineation report.   


 Data sheets prepared by the Corps:      
 Corps navigable waters’ study:      
 U.S. Geological Survey Hydrologic Atlas:      


  USGS NHD data.   
  USGS 8 and 12 digit HUC maps.   


 U.S. Geological Survey map(s). Cite scale & quad name: 1:24K - Pleasant Prairie 
 USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey. Citation: NRCS soils data 
 National wetlands inventory map(s).  Cite name:      
 State/Local wetland inventory map(s): Wisconsin Wetland Inventory 
 FEMA/FIRM maps:      
 100-year Floodplain Elevation is:     (National Geodectic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
 Photographs:  Aerial (Name & Date):      


    or  Other (Name & Date): Site photos from delineation report dated 25 June 2018 
 Previous determination(s).  File no. and date of response letter:      
 Applicable/supporting case law:      
 Applicable/supporting scientific literature:      
 Other information (please specify): WDNR Exemption Letter dated 2 August 2018 


 
B.  ADDITIONAL COMMENTS TO SUPPORT JD:   Per the Rapanos guidance, "ditches (including roadside 
ditches) excavated wholly in and draining only uplands and that do not carry a relatively permanent flow 
of water are not considered Waters of the United States."  Wetlands A and I formed in upland constructed 
ditches onsite and do not have relatively permanent flows of water. Therefore, Wetlands A and I are not 
waters of the U.S. as detailed in Section II.B.2. 







NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND 
REQUEST FOR APPEAL 


Applicant: Clark Dietz, Inc., c/o Brandon Flunker File No.: MVP-2016-03639-JMB Date:  4 March 2019 
Attached is: See Section below 
    INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) A 
    PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) B 
    PERMIT DENIAL C 
  X APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION D 
    PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION E 


SECTION I - The following identifies your rights and options regarding an administrative appeal of the above decision.  Additional 
information may be found at http://usace.army.mil/inet/functions/cw/cecwo/reg or Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331. 
A:  INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT:  You may accept or object to the permit. 


 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 


authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your 
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights 
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit. 


 
• OBJECT:  If you object to the permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request that 


the permit be modified accordingly. You must complete Section II of this form and return the form to the district engineer.  
Your objections must be received by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will forfeit your right 
to appeal the permit in the future.  Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your objections and may: (a) 
modify the permit to address all of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your objections, or (c) not modify 
the permit having determined that the permit should be issued as previously written.  After evaluating your objections, the 
district engineer will send you a proffered permit for your reconsideration, as indicated in Section B below. 


 
B:  PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or appeal the permit 
 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 


authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your 
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights 
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit. 


 
• APPEAL:  If you choose to decline the proffered permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you 


may appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section II of this 
form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the 
date of this notice. 


 
C:  PERMIT DENIAL:   You may appeal the denial of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by 
completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division 
engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 
 
D:  APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You may accept or appeal the approved JD or provide new information. 
 
• ACCEPT:  You do not need to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD.  Failure to notify the Corps within 60 days of  the 


date of this notice,  means that you accept the approved JD in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD. 
 
• APPEAL:  If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers Administrative 


Appeal Process by completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received 
by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 


 
E:  PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You do not need to respond to the Corps regarding the preliminary 
JD.  The Preliminary JD is not appealable.  If you wish, you may request an approved JD (which may be appealed), by contacting 
the Corps district for further instruction.  Also you may provide new information for further consideration by the Corps to reevaluate 
the JD. 



http://usace.army.mil/inet/functions/cw/cecwo/reg





SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TO AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT 
REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS:  (Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an initial 
proffered permit in clear concise statements.  You may attach additional information to this form to clarify where your reasons or 
objections are addressed in the administrative record.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The appeal is limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the 
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined is needed to 
clarify the administrative record.  Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record.  However, 
you may provide additional information to clarify the location of information that is already in the administrative record. 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION: 
If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the appeal 
process you may contact: 
 
      


If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you may 
also contact the Division Engineer through:  
 
     Administrative Appeals Review Officer 
     Mississippi Valley Division  
     P.O. Box 80 (1400 Walnut Street) 
     Vicksburg, MS 39181-0080 
     601-634-5820      FAX: 601-634-5816 
 


RIGHT OF ENTRY:  Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government 
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process.  You will be provided a 15 day 
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate in all site investigations. 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature of appellant or agent. 


Date: Telephone number: 


 







 
 
August 2, 2018  EXE-SE-2018-30-02521 
 
  
OC Holdings, LLC 
Dave Doro 
5721 W. Ryan Road 
Franklin, WI 53132 
 
RE:  Artificial Wetland Exemption Determination for an area described as Wetlands A, B, C 
and I, located in the SW1/4 of the NW1/4 of Section 09, Township 01 North, Range 22 East, City 
of Kenosha, Kenosha County 
 
 
Dear Mr. or Ms. Doro: 
 
This letter is in response to your request for an artificial wetland exemption determination for the 
above mentioned wetlands.    
 
According to 281.36 (4n), State Statutes, a landscape feature where hydrophytic vegetation may 
be present as a result of human modification to the landscape or hydrology and for which no 
definitive evidence exists showing a prior wetland or stream history before August 1, 1991, may 
be exempt from state wetland regulations.  The following types of artificial wetlands cannot be 
exempted from state wetland regulation: 1) a wetland that serves as a fish spawning area or that 
is passage to a fish spawning area and 2) a wetland created as a result of a wetland mitigation 
requirement.  In addition, DNR must also consider whether the artificial wetland is providing 
significant flood protection to adjacent or downstream properties and infrastructure, and/or 
significant water quality functions to adjacent or downstream water bodies.     
 
The Department reviewed the following materials to aid in our exemption determination:  


• The request narrative  
• Historic Maps, including the Original Land Survey Plat, Bordner Survey, USGS 


topographic Quad map from 1971, and soil mapping.   
• Aerial photographs, including the 1937/8 era photograph, a pre-construction photograph, 


and a post-construction photograph.   
• Site photographs that show different angles and views of the wetland  


 
Below is a summary of our findings:  
 
Request Narrative 
According to the request narrative all wetlands A, B, C, and I appear to be human- caused and not 
historic wetlands. Wetlands B and C flow to a stormwater pond system and wetlands A and I flow 
to the west and north towards wetland H. No wetlands on site had wetland or stream history.  
 
Historic Map Review 


• Original Land Survey Plat.  The original land survey does not indicate wetness signatures 
in the area in question.  


State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
101 S. Webster Street 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI  53707-7921 


 


wisconsin.gov Printed on 
Recycled 


Paper 


dnr.wi.gov 


 


Scott Walker, Governor 
Daniel L. Meyer, Secretary 


Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 


TTY Access via relay - 711 


 


 
 







• Bordner Survey.  The Bordner survey indicates the area was actively cropped historically. 
• Soil Maps: The soil maps indicates that upland soils are present in the wetland areas in 


question. 
 
Aerial Photograph Review 


• 1937/38 era aerial photograph.  The 1937/38 aerial photograph shows the site is in 
agricultural use 


• Pre-construction aerial photograph:  The 1970s aerial photograph shows the site under 
construction with grading and land disturbance occurring in the area.  


• Post-construction aerial photograph:  The 1980 aerial photograph shows some wetness 
signatures forming and progressing through 2015.  


 
Site Photographs 
The site photographs show wetlands forming in swales and other disturbed areas.  
 
Conclusion:   
Based upon the information provided above, the wetlands identified as Wetland A, B, C, and I, 
lacked a wetland history prior to August 1, 1991, and fulfills all artificial wetland exemption 
standards.  Therefore, Wetlands A, B, C, and I are exempt from state wetland regulations.   
 


 
 
This letter describes DNR’s decision regarding the jurisdictional status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, 
and is only valid for state jurisdictional purposes.  For decisions regarding the federal jurisdictional 
status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, you will need to contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  The 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers contact for Kenosha County is Rachel Nuetzel.  Rachel Nuetzel 
can be reached at (651) 290-5729. 
 
If you have any questions about this determination, please contact me at (608) 264-9223 or email 
Amanda.Minks@wisconsin.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 


 
Amanda Minks 







Wetland Exemption Specialist 
 
cc: Rachel Nuetzel, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Travis Schroeder, Regional WMS, DNR 
 Neil Molstad, Regional Wetland Identification Specialist, DNR 
 
 
 























1 
DEV1904-008 


Consider the request of Melissa Roman with CenterPoint Properties, owner of the properties 


generally located on the northwest corner of 109th Street and 80th Avenue for approval of 


the Certified Survey Map for the creation of two properties. 


Recommendation: Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the 


Certified Survey Map subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report 


dated June 17, 2019. 


 


  







2 
DEV1904-008 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider the request of Melissa Roman with CenterPoint Properties, owner of the properties 


generally located on the northwest corner of 109th Street and 80th Avenue for approval of 


the Certified Survey Map for the creation of two properties. 


Ta Chen International intends to expand the building and site improvements on the property 


located at 8500 109th Avenue by constructing a 265,298 square foot addition.  


Ta Chen International, Inc. ("TCI" or "the Company") is a leading master distributor of 


stainless, aluminum and nickel alloy coils, sheets, plates, long products, tubes and PVFs. 


TCI is an industry leader in inventory depth, breadth and availability and efficiently serves 


over 3,000 customers nationwide through 8 strategically located warehouses. 


Founded by Mr. Robert Shieh in 1989, TCI entered the US market as a newcomer to the 


stainless steel distribution business. Within 10 years, the Company has grown from a small 


operation in Los Angeles to become the largest and most recognized name in Stainless 


Master Distribution in the United States. Ta Chen moved into its current 471,000-square-


foot facility at 8500 109th Street about five years ago in 2014. The Ta Chen facility was 


developed by a joint venture of Milwaukee-based Wispark LLC and Oak Brook, Ill. based 


CenterPoint Properties. In recent years, Ta Chen has acquired companies such as other 


aluminum distributors, a domestic stainless pipe and tubing manufacturer and an aluminum 


mill, which was purchased earlier this year. The acquisitions have added product lines for Ta 


Chen, which has prompted the expansion of the Pleasant Prairie facility from its current 


471,645-square-foot facility to a 736,943-square-foot facility. Ta Chen currently employs 


approximately 65 office and warehouse employees at its Pleasant Prairie location. Ta Chen 


currently has no definite plans to hire additional employees at this facility.  


This new expansion would facilitate greater warehousing and shipping operations from their 


Pleasant Prairie facility. The area currently exists as five separate parcels. The certified 


survey map would re-divide the 48.6 acres of land into two (2) parcels.  This project will 


include an expansion to the existing building to the east, along with additional dock areas. 


The six (6) existing driveway access points on the site will remain with one (1) new 


proposed access driveway to 80th Avenue. The site will expanded to provide 116 total 


parking spaces, including five (5) total handicapped accessible spaces, and six (6) new dock 


doors on the north and south sides of the building for a total of fourteen (14) dock spaces 


for the site overall. 


A total of 43 additional future truck parking spaces are proposed to be constructed abutting 


109th street. Significant berming and screening, not currently reflected on the plans, will be 


required to screen the semi-trucks from the abutting right-of-way.    


A total of 26.38% of the site will remain open space.  Storm water for the development is 


accommodated through an on-site drainage system which drains to the regional retention 


facilities within the LakeView Corporate Park to the north of the property.  


It is anticipated that the construction on the addition would begin in summer, 2019 and 


would be completed in the spring of 2020. CenterPoint Properties will continue to be the 


landowner with TaChen International occupying the existing 471,645 building, along with 


the new 265,298 square foot building addition.  


 


Certified Survey Map:  Ta Chen’s current site and adjacent vacant land, 48.6 acres total, 


is proposed to be re-divided into two (2) parcels for additional industrial development 


pursuant to the existing M-2, General Manufacturing District requirements.  


 Lot 1 is proposed to be 36.0 acres (proposed Ta Chen expanded facility) 







3 
DEV1904-008 


 Lot 2 is proposed to be 12.6 acres 


The Site and Operational Plans will be in compliance with the Village Zoning Ordinances. 


This includes site plans, drainage and grading plans, building plans, landscape plans, 


signage plans and all other required plans and documents pursuant to the Site and 


Operational Plan requirements of the Village Zoning Ordinance (Article IX of Chapter 420 of 


the Village Municipal Code) for each building site. 


Recommendation: Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the 


Certified Survey Map subject to the following conditions: 


 


1. See attached changes to the CSM. 


2. Pursuant to the Village Finance Department records the following outstanding taxes (3rd 


installment) shall be paid prior to the recording of the CSM: 


Tax payments made 4/24/2019 updated balances (payoff good through 7/31/2019): 


 92-4-122-282-0109 $199,741.83 


 92-4-122-282-0187 $6,597.91 


 92-4-122-282-0186 $6,589.48 


 92-4-122-282-0133 $5,524.74 


 92-4-122-282-0132 $994.92 


3. A recorded copy of the CSM shall be provided to the Village within thirty (30) days of Village 


Board approval.  



























1 | P a g e  


 


DRAFT 5/29/2019 
TA CHEN CSM 


 


DEDICATION AND EASEMENT PROVISIONS 


 


 


1. The fee interest in the areas shown as a Dedicated Public Street on this Certified 


Survey Map (CSM) were previously dedicated, given, granted and conveyed by the 


former landowner to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, its successors and assigns (the 


"Village") as it pertains to 80th Avenue and 109th Street for the construction, 


installation, repair, alteration, replacement, planting and maintenance of public 


roadway improvements, uses and purposes, including, without limitation, roadway 


pavement, curbs and gutters, street signs, street lights, street trees, sanitary 


sewerage system improvements, water system improvements, roadway 


improvements, storm sewer and drainage system improvements, utility and 


communications facilities, street tree landscaping, and for all related ingress and 


egress, construction, installation, repair, alteration, replacement, planting and 


maintenance activities.  Such fee interest is subject to the following: the obligation of 


the abutting Lot 1 and 2 Owners shown on this CSM which are adjacent to the public 


street areas for the required planting, mowing, watering and maintenance of grass 


within the grassy terrace area and for the maintenance and replanting of street trees 


in the area between the roadway pavement and the Lots.  In the event of any conflict 


between the rights of the Village under its existing fee interest in the Dedicated Public 


Street areas shown on this CSM and the rights of the Lot 1 or 2 Owner(s) or of the 


LakeView Corporate Park Owners’ Association, Inc. pursuant to the dedication retained 


herein, the rights of the Village shall be deemed to be superior. 


 


 


2. Perpetual nonexclusive easements coextensive with the areas shown as a 20’  


Wisconsin Electric Distribution Easement (recorded on CSM #2725) 20’ General 


Utility Easements (recorded on CSM # 2161 and CSM # 2193) as shown on this CSM 


were dedicated, given, granted, conveyed by the former landowner to the respective 


utilities including, but not limited to, those commonly known as WE Energies (f/k/a 


W.E.P.CO), AT & T (f/k/a Wisconsin Bell) and Spectrum d/b/a Time Warner Cable Inc. 


and their respective successors and assigns (collectively the "Utility and 


Communications Grantees"), for the purposes of constructing, installing, operating, 


repairing, altering, replacing and maintaining utility and communication lines and other 


related facilities to serve Lots 1 and 2 and for any related ingress and egress.  The 


Wisconsin Electric Distribution Easement and General Utility Easement areas shall also 


include the right to trim or cut down trees, bushes, branches, and roots as may be 


reasonably required, that are interfering with the Utility and Communication Grantees 


use of the easement areas.  To the extent possible, all such utility and communications 


lines and facilities shall be installed underground.  Upon the installation of the utility 


lines, utility cables and related appurtenances, the elevation of the existing ground 


surface within the Wisconsin Electric Distribution Easement and General Utility 


Easement areas shall only be altered in accordance with separate agreement between 


Utility and Communications Grantees and Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) and as may be 


approved by the Village.  Upon the installation of the required utilities, the Lot 1 and 


2 Owner(s) shall restore or cause to be restored, all such land, as nearly as is 


reasonably possible, to the conditions existing prior to installation of such utilities 


within the Wisconsin Electric Distribution Easement and General Utility Easement areas 


on which such easements are located as does not interfere with the purpose of the 







2 | P a g e  


 


utility and communications easements and the use of such easements by the Utility 


and Communications Grantees.  Unless there is a separate agreement entered into 


between the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) and Grantees regarding the transfer of the 


restoration and maintenance responsibilities to the Utility and Communications 


Grantees, the Grantor shall be responsible for all maintenance. No buildings, fences, 


or structures of any kind shall be placed within the Wisconsin Electric Distribution 


Easement and General Utility Easement areas without the prior written approval of the 


Utility and Communication Grantees. 


 


The Village generally allows private utilities, including but not limited to electric and 


communications facilities, to be installed in public street rights-of-way areas with prior 


written approval from the Village, subject to the requirements of applicable Village 


ordinances and the requirements of such public uses and purposes of the Village.  


Further, each individual private utility, electric or communications company shall be 


responsible for promptly restoring the public street areas to their pre-existing 


condition, at its own cost, after any use of such areas.  In the event the private 


companies do not restore the public street areas to a vegetatively stabilized condition, 


the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) shall be ultimately responsible for the costs of such 


restoration and may pursue its remedies against the respective utility company(ies).  


Under no circumstances shall any private utility, electric or communications company 


conduct any open cutting of the public streets without prior written approval of the 


Village.  Any such private utility or communications facilities shall be promptly 


relocated, at the cost of the individual utility, electric or communications company, 


upon written request of the Village, to serve the public functions and purposes of the 


Village in the public street areas.  In the event of any conflict between the rights of 


the Village and the rights of the private utility, electric or communications company in 


such public street areas, the Village's rights shall be deemed to be superior.  


 


3. Nonexclusive easements coextensive with the area shown as Dedicated 50’ x 15’ 


Vision Triangle Easement area on this CSM is hereby dedicated, given, granted and 


conveyed by the Owner to the Village for the purpose of maintaining a clear sight 


line of vision at each private driveway intersection with the adjacent street. There 


shall be no obstructions, such as but not limited to structures, signage, fences, 


vehicular parking, vegetation, or bus shelters permitted within the easement area 


between the heights of two (2) feet and ten (10) feet unless approved by the Village. 


These restrictions are for the benefit of the traveling public and shall be enforceable 


by the Village. 


 


RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 


 


 


1. Lakeview XIV Venture LLC hereby covenants that the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) shall 


have the obligation of planting, maintaining and replacing the public street trees 


located within the 80th Avenue and 109th Street rights-of-way areas shown on this 


CSM.  Such planting and maintenance shall include without limitation and as needed 


planting, staking, mulching, weeding, pruning, watering, replanting, and removing of 


trash, debris, leaves and brush around the trees in order to prevent a nuisance 


condition.  No driveways, signage, mail boxes, parking areas, structures or fences 


shall be erected within the right-of-way areas, which might damage the street trees 


or might interfere with the Village’s rights to maintain the public street 


improvements, unless approved by the Village.  This covenant shall run with the  


land, shall be binding upon the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s), its successors, successors and 


assigns and successors-in-title of the land, in their capacity as the Owner(s) of Lot 1 







3 | P a g e  


 


and 2, and shall benefit and be enforceable by the Village.  Such street tree planting 


and maintenance shall be performed regularly, without compensation, and to the 


satisfaction of the Village.  


 


To the extent that the Village performs any such public street tree related 


maintenance activities, the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) shall be liable for any costs which 


may be incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such Lot 1 and 2 


Owner(s) as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or 


successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to 


law.   


 


2. Lakeview XIV Venture LLC hereby covenants that the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) shall be 


responsible for all costs associated with the snow removal of the private driveways; 


grading, placing of  topsoil, seeding or sodding and mowing of the street terrace 


area; payment of public street lights energy and maintenance costs; installation and 


maintenance of mailboxes; extensions and maintenance of private utility and 


communications facilities; maintenance of the private storm water drainage and their 


fair share costs associated with the off-site retention basin(s) to handle storm water 


from the development site; and other required construction, installation, repair, 


alteration, replacement, planting and development maintenance in accordance with 


the terms and conditions of the Village Municipal Code and the specific requirements 


of the Site and Operational Plan approvals.  


 


To the extent that the Village performs any such private related maintenance 


activities, the Lot 1 and 2 Owner(s) shall be liable for any costs which may be 


incurred by the Village, which the Village may recover from such Lot 1 and 2 


Owner(s) as special assessments or special charges under Section 66.0627 (or 


successors or similar provisions) of the Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise according to 


law.   


 


3. Lakeview XIV Venture LLC hereby covenants that the Dedicated Vision Triangle 


Easement area shown on this CSM hereby places restrictions on Lot 1 because of the 


location of a 50’ x 15’ easement which was given, granted and conveyed by the 


Developer to maintain a clear sight line of vision at the 80th Avenue and 109th Street 


intersection.  There shall be no sight obstructions, such as but not limited to signage, 


fences, landscaping or vehicular parking that are located within the easement areas 


between the heights of two (2) feet and 10 feet, unless approved by the Village.  


These restrictions are for the benefit of the traveling public and shall be enforceable 


by the Village. 


 


 







v ~ . ~ e a e


PLEASANT
PRAIRIE


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP APPLICATION


I, (We), the undersigned owners)/agent do hereby petition the Village Board to subdivide the
property with a Certified Survey Map (CSM) as hereinafter requested:


Property ~o~at~on: 8500 109th Street &Others without Address


Legal Description:
See CSM


TaX Parce~ rvumber(s): 92-4-122-282-0109;-0187;-0186;-0133;-0132


Existing Zoning District(s):


Select all that apply:


L■


L


e


M-2


The property abuts or adjoins State Trunk Highway


The property abuts or adjoins County Trunk Highway


Municipal Sanitary Sewer is available to service said property


B Municipal Water is available to service said property


I (We), have contacted the Community Development Department to arrange apre-application
meeting to discuss the proposed request with the Village staff to determine whether additional
i nformation may be needed to consider the request.


I (We), hereby certify that all the above statements and attachments submitted herewith are true
and correct to the best of my knowledge.


PROPERTY OWNER:


Pant Name: See attached Letter


Signature:


Address:


(City) (State) (Zip)


Phone:


Fax:


Email:


Date


APPLICANT/AGENT:


Print Name; Me~ISSa ROfI'laCl


Signature:


Address: 1808 SWIft ~~V@


Oak Brook I L 605
(City) (State) (Zip)


Phone: 630-586-8000


Fax; 630-586-8010


Ema~~: mroman@centerpoint.com


gate: 04-11-2019


Community Development Department, 9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie WI 53158 262-925-6717


REV. 1/17







































DEV1905-009 
 


Consider approval of a Lot Line Adjustment between the properties located at 9154 30th 


Avenue owned by Kari Schmitz and 9145 32nd Avenue owned by Anthony Gucciarodo. 


Recommendation: 


Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Lot Line Adjustment 


subject to the comments and conditions of the June 17, 2019 Village Staff Report. 


 







DEV1905-009 
 


 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider approval of a Lot Line Adjustment between the properties located at 9154 30th 


Avenue owned by Kari Schmitz and 9145 32nd Avenue owned by Anthony Gucciarodo.   


 


The owners of the properties are requesting approval of a lot line adjustment between the 


two properties.  A portion of the property (50 feet by 125 feet) located at 9145 32nd Avenue 


(Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-133-0500) is proposed to be sold and attached to the 


property located at 9154 30th Avenue (Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-133-0555).   


The properties are zoned R-4, Urban Single Family Residential District, which zoning 


requires a minimum lot frontage of 90 feet on a public street with lot area of 15,000 square 


feet.  The property at 9145 32nd Avenue meets and exceeds these requirements.   


The lot at 9154 30th Avenue is only 50 feet wide abutting on 30th Avenue with a lot area of 


10,200 square feet.  [Note:  It is unlikely that 30th Avenue would be extended to the north 


without significant improvements to the existing 30th Avenue which is a narrow roadway 


adjacent to the Kenosha County Bike Trail.]  This lot is considered a legal non-conforming 


lot.  In addition the house is less than 10 feet from the side property line and less than 30 


feet from the street property line; thus making this a legal non-conforming structure.  The 


additional 50 feet (6,250 square feet) of land area being added to the north side of the lot 


will make this lot conforming at it relates to lot area. The house setback to the side property 


line will be conforming as well.   


Recommendations:  


The Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Lot Line Adjustment 


subject to the petitioners recording the proper transfer/deed documents with the Plat of 


Survey for the Lot Line Adjustment as an Exhibit at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds 


Office within 30 days of final Village approval and providing a recorded copy to the Village. 


 


 







pherrick

Rectangle



pherrick

Text Box

Resubmited 5-20-19



















CODE1904-002 


Consider a Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #19-15) to amend Sections 420-148 B (119 and 


(120) related specific conditional use permit standards for utility substations in the Village. 


 


Recommendation: 


On June 10, 2019, the Plan Commission held a public hearing and recommended that the Village 


Board approve the Zoning Text Amendment as presented at the June 17, 2019 Village Staff 


Report. 







CODE1904-002 


 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider a Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #19-15) to amend Sections 420-148 B (119 and 


(120) related specific conditional use permit standards for utility substations in the Village. 


 


On April 15, 2019 the Village Board approved Resolution #19-11 to initiate zoning text 


amendment related to the specific conditional use permit requirements related to setbacks for 


utility substations.  


The Village staff has evaluated the conditional use permit requirements for utility substations so 


that both sections (420-148 B 119 and 120) requirements are consistent and for reduced 


setbacks for these small buildings to property lines rather than the required larger building 


setbacks in the underlying district; therefore allowing the buildings to not occupy more land than 


needed but still allow for appropriate setbacks to adjacent properties due to building size. 


The amendments include:   


420-148 B (119)  Utility substations or electric power or gas-metering substations listed as a 


conditional use in any Zoning District. 


(a)  All utility substations shall be securely fenced, landscaped, screened 


and marked with appropriate warning signs. 


(b) The minimum lot size shall be a lot large enough to accommodate the 


applicable principal building and to reduce the setbacks required in 


the underlying district to all property lines and wetlands to not less 


than 10 feet as approved by the Plan Commission to allow for proper 


landscaping and screening. 


(c)  The minimum lot frontage on a public street shall be 50 feet. 


(d)  The minimum gross floor area requirement shall not be applicable. 


420-148 B (120)  Utility substation building (only as a principal use on its own lot) listed as a 


conditional use in any Zoning District. 


(a)  The minimum lot size shall be a lot large enough to accommodate the 


applicable principal building and to reduce the setbacks required in 


the underlying district to all property lines and wetlands to not less 


than 10 feet as approved by the Plan Commission to allow for proper 


landscaping and screening. 


(b)  The minimum lot frontage on a public street shall be 50 feet. 


(c)  The minimum gross floor area requirement shall not be applicable. 


(d) All utility substations shall be securely fenced, landscaped, screened 


and marked with appropriate warning signs. 


Recommendations:  


Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Zoning Text Amendment as 


presented. 







CODE1904-002 


ORD. #19-15 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


SECTIONS 420-148 B (119) AND (120) OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE  


RELATED TO UTILITY SUBSTATIONS  


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA 


COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE 


VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


(119)  Utility substations or electric power or gas-metering substations listed as a 


conditional use in any Zoning the M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, B-


5 and I-1 Districts. 


(a)  All utility substations shall be securely fenced, landscaped, screened 


and marked with appropriate warning signs. 


(b) The minimum lot size shall be a lot large enough to accommodate the 


applicable principal building and to reduce the setbacks required in 


the underlying district to all property lines and wetlands to not less 


than 10 feet as approved by the Plan Commission to allow for proper 


landscaping and screening. 


(c)  The minimum lot frontage on a public street shall be 50 feet. 


(d)  The minimum gross floor area requirement shall not be applicable. 


(120)  Utility substation building (only as a principal use on its own lot parcel) 


listed as a conditional use in the M-1, M-2, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4 or B-5 any 


Zoning District. 


(a)  The minimum lot size shall be a lot large enough to accommodate the 


applicable principal building and to reduce the setbacks required in 


the underlying district to all property lines and wetlands to not less 


than 10 feet as approved by the Plan Commission to allow for proper 


landscaping and screening. setback requirements in such district. 


(b)  The minimum lot frontage on a public street requirement shall be 50 


feet. 


(c)  The minimum gross floor area requirement shall not be applicable. 


(d) All utility substations shall be securely fenced, landscaped, screened 


and marked with appropriate warning signs. 


Adopted this 17th day of June 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


 


Posted:    


 
  







 


Consider the request of John Hotvedt on behalf of Bear Development for approval of partial 


releases to several recorded documents related to properties associated with The Vista at 


Creekside apartment development. 


Recommendation: 


The Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve the partial release of the 


aforementioned documents since all associated work has been completed and/or the documents 


are not associated with the lands to be developed with The Vistas at Creekside subject to the 


petitioners recording the partial releases and providing a recorded copy of each release to the 


Village within 30 days of Village approval. 


 







 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 17, 2019 


Consider the request of John Hotvedt on behalf of Bear Development for approval of partial 


releases to several recorded documents related to properties associated with The Vista at 


Creekside apartment development. 


 


The petitioner is requesting partial releases for the following documents as recorded at the 


Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office affecting the land development area of The Vista at 


Creekside apartment development located on Lots 1, 2 and 3 of CSM 2898 with new Parcel 


Numbers 92-4-122-153-2801; 92-4-122-153-2802; and 92-4-122-153-2803.  (old Parcel 


Numbers  92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, 92-4-122-153-0070, 92-4-122-153-0080, 


92-4-122-153-0090, 92-4-122-153-0092, part of 92-4-122-153-0727, part of 92-4-122-153-


0728, and part of 92-4-122-153-0729.)   


These documents relate to the existing platted developments with Creekside Crossing and the 


parcels associated with The Vista at Creekside were expansion areas of Creekside Crossing with 


no public improvements; therefore the documents are not related to any of these areas within 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of CSM 2898. 


1. Partial Release of Variance Grant Document #94-020 approved on December 19, 1994 


related to the paving sequence and timing for Creekside Subdivision.  These 


improvements are completed and are not related to any properties associated 


with The Vista at Creekside development. 


2. Partial Release of a Waiver of Special Assessment Notices and Hearing for the installation 


of sewer stubs, pursuant to that certain Waiver of Special Assessment Notices and Hearing 


recorded on May 8, 2000 for the installation of three 8 inch sewer stubs.  The Village 


Finance Department has been verified that this assessment has been paid.  


3. vPartial Release of Variance Grant Document #05-04 approved on May 2, 2005 to begin 


mass grading prior to approval of the Final Plat of Creekside Crossing Subdivision and the 


Final Condominium plat of Creekside Crossing.  The reference Final Plats have been 


approved and constructed. 


4. Partial Release of Stipulated Shoreland Permit #05-04 dated June 28, 2005 related to 


work with the shoreland of Jerome Creek for Creekside Crossing Subdivision Phase 1.  


This work has been completed and are not related to any properties associated 


with The Vista at Creekside development. . 


5. Partial Release of Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements for Creekside 


Crossing dated July 16, 2005.  These Restrictions, Covenants and Easements are 


being released from the properties associated with The Vista at Creekside 


development. 


6. Partial Release of Development Agreement dated August 16, 2005 related to the 


installation of the required public improvements for Creekside Crossing Subdivision.  


There are no related public improvements pursuant to this Agreement related to 


the properties associated with The Vista at Creekside development. 


7. Partial Release of Development Agreement dated July 17, 2007 related to the installation 


of the required public improvements for Creekside Crossing Addition #1 Subdivision.  


There are no related public improvements pursuant to this Agreement related to 


the properties associated with The Vista at Creekside development. 


Recommendations:  


The Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve the partial release of the 


aforementioned documents since all associated work has been completed and/or the documents 


are not associated with the lands to be developed with The Vistas at Creekside.   This approval is 


subject to the petitioners recording the partial releases and providing a recorded copy of each 


release to the Village within 30 days of Village approval. 







 


1 
4845-2872-8985 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


VARIANCE GRANT 


DOCUMENT NO. 94-020 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF VARIANCE GRANT 


DOCUMENT NO. 94-020 is made as of the _____ day of 


June, 2019, by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin 


municipal corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village granted a variance to 


certain real property located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 


pursuant to that certain Variance Grant Document No. 94-


020 recorded on January 27, 1995, with the Kenosha 


County Register of Deeds as Document No. 983264. 


B.  Creekside MF, LLC (“Owner”) owns 


a portion of the property encumbered by the Variance Grant 


Document more particularly described on Exhibit A 


attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”). 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


  C. The Owner has requested the Village to release of record the Variance 


Grant Document with respect to the Property. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations 


under the Variance Grant Document No. 94-020 with respect to the Property have been satisfied 


in their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged.  At the request of 


the Owner, the Village releases the Property from Variance Grant Document No. 94-020 and 


Variance Grant Document No. 94-020 is of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to 


the Property. 


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4845-2872-8985 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to be 


effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4845-2872-8985 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 























 


1 
4852-4130-1913 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


WAIVER OF SPECIAL 


ASSESSMENT NOTICES 


AND HEARING 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF WAIVER OF SPECIAL 


ASSESSMENT NOTICES AND HEARING is made as of 


the _____ day of June, 2019, by the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village required the owner of 


certain real property located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 


to consent to special assessments for the installation of 


sewer stubs, pursuant to that certain Waiver of Special 


Assessment Notices and Hearing recorded on May 8, 2000, 


with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds as Document 


No. 1180955. 


B.  Creekside MF, LLC (“Owner”) owns 


a portion of the property encumbered by the Waiver of 


Special Assessment Notices and Hearing more particularly 


described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 


hereof (the “Property”). 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


  C. The Owner has requested the Village to release of record the Waiver of 


Special Assessment Notices and Hearing with respect to the Property. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations 


under the Waiver of Special Assessment Notices and Hearing with respect to the Property have 


been satisfied in their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged.  At 


the request of the Owner, the Village releases the Property from the Waiver of Special 


Assessment Notices and Hearing and the Waiver of Special Assessment Notices and Hearing is 


of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to the Property. 


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4852-4130-1913 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to be 


effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4852-4130-1913 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 















 


1 
4848-4048-4505 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


VARIANCE GRANT 


DOCUMENT NO. 05-04 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF VARIANCE GRANT 


DOCUMENT NO. 05-04 is made as of the _____ day of 


June, 2019, by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin 


municipal corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village granted a variance to 


certain real property located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 


pursuant to that certain Variance Grant Document No. 05-


04 recorded on July 29, 2005, with the Kenosha County 


Register of Deeds as Document No. 1443246. 


B.  Creekside MF, LLC (“Owner”) owns 


a portion of the property encumbered by the Variance Grant 


Document No. 05-04 more particularly described on 


Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the 


“Property”). 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


  C. The Owner has requested the Village to release of record the Variance 


Grant Document No. 05-04 with respect to the Property. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations 


under the Variance Grant Document No. 05-04 with respect to the Property have been satisfied in 


their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged.  At the request of the 


Owner, the Village releases the Property from the Variance Grant Document No. 05-04 and 


Variance Grant Document No. 05-04 is of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to the 


Property. 


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4848-4048-4505 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to be 


effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4848-4048-4505 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 































 


1 
4819-9471-4777 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


STIPULATED 


SHORELAND PERMIT 


#05-04 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF STIUPULATED 


SHORELAND PERMIT #05-04 is made as of the _____ 


day of June, 2019, by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a 


Wisconsin municipal corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village granted a stipulated 


shoreland permit to certain real property located in Kenosha 


County, Wisconsin, pursuant to that certain Stipulated 


Shoreland Permit #05-04 recorded on July 29, 2005, with 


the Kenosha County Register of Deeds as Document No. 


1443245. 


B.  Creekside MF, LLC (“Owner”) owns 


a portion of the property encumbered by the Stipulated 


Shoreland Permit #05-04 more particularly described on 


Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the 


“Property”). 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


  C. The Owner has requested the Village to release of record the Stipulated 


Shoreland Permit #05-04 with respect to the Property. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations 


under the Stipulated Shoreland Permit #05-04 with respect to the Property have been satisfied in 


their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged.  At the request of the 


Owner, the Village releases the Property from the Stipulated Shoreland Permit #05-04 and 


Stipulated Shoreland Permit #05-04 is of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to the 


Property.  


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4819-9471-4777 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to be 


effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4819-9471-4777 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 



















 


4841-1981-3273 


1)  


 


 


Document Number 


 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


DECLARATION OF 


RESTRICTIONS, 


COVENANTS AND 


EASEMENTS 


 


Document Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF DECLARATION 


OF RESTRICTIONS, COVENANTS AND EASEMENTS 


is made as of the ___ day of June, 2019, by Creekside, PP, 


LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (the 


“Developer”) and consented to by the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie (the “Village”). 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee simple owner of 


that certain property described on the attached Exhibit A (the 


“Released Property”);  


 


Drafted by after recording, return to: 


Atty. Katherine R. Rist 


Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street 


P. O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI  53701-1497 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and 


Easements dated August 16, 2005, and recorded with the office of the Kenosha County Register 


of Deeds (“ROD”) on August 18, 2005 as Document No. 1446158, as amended by that certain 


Amendment to the Creekside Crossing Declaration of R,C & E dated March 24, 2006, and 


recorded in the ROD on March 24, 2006 as Document No. 1473779, as supplemented by that 


certain Supplemental Declaration of Restrictions Covenants and Easements for Creekside 


Crossing Addition No. 1 dated July 17, 2007, and recorded in the ROD on July 18, 2007 as 


Document No. 1527620, and as further amended by that certain Second Amendment to 


Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants, and Easements dated August 18, 2011, and recorded in 


the ROD on August 22, 2011 as Document No. 1651914 (collectively, the “Declaration”), the 


Released Property was subjected to the Declaration;  


 WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation of Creekside Crossing Homeowner’s 


Association, Inc. and Bylaws of Creekside Crossing Homeowner’s Association, Inc. were 


recorded on August 18, 2005 in the ROD as Document No. 1446160 (the “Homeowner’s 


Association Documents”); 


 


WHEREAS, the Developer assumed all of the rights and obligations of the developer 


under the Declaration pursuant to that certain Quit Claim Assignment of Developer’s Rights 


dated March 19, 2015, and recorded in the ROD on March 26, 2015 as Document No. 1745185; 


and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Section 7.1 of the Declaration, within the first fifteen (15) 


years following the date the Declaration is recorded, the Developer alone may amend the 


Declaration, with the Village’s written approval. 







 


4841-1981-3273 -2- 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and other good and valuable 


consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Developer does 


hereby amend the Declaration to release, terminate and forever discharge the Released Property 


and the owner thereof from any rights, titles, interests, obligations and responsibilities created by 


the Declaration and Homeowner’s Association Documents such that the Declaration and 


Homeowner’s Association Documents, only with respect to the Released Property, are 


discharged and of no further force and effect. 


 


[Signature page follows.] 


 







 


4841-1981-3273 


  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this Partial Release 


of Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements as of the day first above written. 


 


 


Creekside PP, LLC 


 


By: ____________________________ 


       Raymond C. Leffler, Sole Member 


 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    )  ss. 


COUNTY OF ___________ ) 


 


  Personally came before me this ____ day of _________, 2019 the above named 


Raymond C. Leffler, as the sole member of Creekside PP, LLC, who executed the foregoing 


instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same on behalf of said limited liability 


company and by its authority. 


 


       __________________________________ 


       *_________________________________ 


       Notary Public, ______ County, _____ 


       My commission (is)(expires): 


       __________________________________ 


 







 


4841-1981-3273 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village hereby acknowledges and consents to this 


Partial Release of Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements as of the day first above 


written. 


 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


By: ____________________________ 


Name: _________________________ 


Its: ____________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    )  ss. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


 


  Personally came before me this ____ day of _________, 2019 the above named 


________________, as the _______________ of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, who executed 


the foregoing instrument for and on behalf thereof. 


 


       __________________________________ 


       *_________________________________ 


       Notary Public, ______ County, _____ 


       My commission (is)(expires): 


       __________________________________ 







 


4841-1981-3273 


Exhibit A 


 


Legal Description of Released Property 


 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 
 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 











































































 


1 
4815-5752-3097 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


DEVELOPMENT 


AGREEMENT 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF DEVELOPMENT 


AGREEMENT is made as of the _____ day of June, 2019, 


by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin municipal 


corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village and Regency Hills-


Creekside Crossing, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability 


company (“Developer”), entered into a Development 


Agreement dated as of August 16, 2005, affecting certain 


real property located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and 


more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto 


and made a part hereof.  A Memorandum of Development 


Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 


Developer was recorded on August 18, 2005, with the 


Kenosha County Register of Deeds as Document No. 


1446153. 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


B. All of Developer’s obligations under the Development Agreement with respect to 


the Property have been fulfilled and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged. 


C. The Village desires by this instrument to cause a notice of the release and 


termination of the Development Agreement with respect to the Property to be set forth in the 


public record. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations of 


Developer under the Development Agreement with respect to the Property have been satisfied in 


their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged and the Development 


Agreement is of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to the Property. 


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4815-5752-3097 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to 


be effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4815-5752-3097 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 



































 


1 
4822-5744-7577 


 


 


 
Document Number 


PARTIAL RELEASE OF 


DEVELOPMENT 


AGREEMENT 
Title 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF DEVELOPMENT 


AGREEMENT is made as of the _____ day of June, 2019, 


by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin municipal 


corporation, (“Village”) 


 


A. The Village and Regency Hills-


Creekside Crossing, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability 


company (“Developer”), entered into a Development 


Agreement dated as of July 17, 2007, affecting certain real 


property located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and more 


particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 


made a part hereof.  A Memorandum of Development 


Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 


Developer was recorded on July 18, 2007, with the Kenosha 


County Register of Deeds as Document No. 1527617. 


After Recording Return To: 
Foley & Lardner LLP 


Attn:  Katherine Rist 


P.O. Box 1497 


Madison, WI 53701-1497 


 


 


See Exhibit A 


Parcel Identification Numbers 


B. All of Developer’s obligations under the Development Agreement with respect to 


the Property have been fulfilled and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged. 


C. The Village desires by this instrument to cause a notice of the release and 


termination of the Development Agreement with respect to the Property to be set forth in the 


public record. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Village declares, covenants and agrees that all obligations of 


Developer under the Development Agreement with respect to the Property have been satisfied in 


their entirety and all amounts due thereunder have been paid or discharged and the Development 


Agreement is of no further force or effect whatsoever with respect to the Property. 


 


[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 


 


[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 







 


4822-5744-7577 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Release to be 


effective as of the date first above written. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By: ______________________________ 


Name: ___________________________ 


Its: ______________________________ 


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


    ) SS. 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2019, by 


___________________ , the _______________________ of Village of Pleasant Prairie, for and on  


behalf thereof. 


        


(Signature) 


[SEAL]             


(Printed Name) 


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My commission expires:     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument was drafted by Katherine Rist of Foley & Lardner LLP 


150 East Gilman Street, Madison, Wisconsin  53703-1481 







 


4822-5744-7577 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description 


 


Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2898 recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds 


for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on May 28, 2019 as Document No. 1842508 being a redivision 


of Part of Outlots 7, 8 and 9 of Creekside Crossing Addition No. 1, all of Certified Survey Map 


No. 2580 and part of the Northeast 1/4, the Southeast 1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 


1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, all in the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


Underlying Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-0060, 92-4-122-153-0050, Part of 92-4-122-153-0727,  


Part of 92-4-122-153-0728, Part of 92-4-122-153-0729, 92-4-122-153-0070, 


92-4-122-153-0080, 92-4-122-153-0090 and 92-4-122-153-0092 


 


Now known as Parcel Identification Numbers: 


92-4-122-153-2801 


92-4-122-153-2802 


92-4-122-153-2803 


 







































Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine 
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless a Board member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the 
General Ordinances of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.) 


1) Minutes of Meeting – June 3, 2019 
2) Consider and approve The Cottages at Village Green Phase 2, Letter of 


Credit Reduction Request No. 4. 


 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI 
June 3, 2019 


6:00 p.m. 
 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on June 3, 2019.  Meeting 
called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Mike Pollocoff, Dave 
Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Kris Keckler was absent and excused.  Also present were Nathan Thiel, 
Village Administrator, Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance 
Director; Dave Smetana, Chief of Police; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public 
Works Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent; Craig Anderson, Recreation Director and Jane 
C. Snell, Village Clerk.  Two citizens attended the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - MAY 20, 2019 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move approval. 
 
 Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any additions, corrections?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 
SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE BOARD 


REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 20, 2019 AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; 
SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
2 


 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 


A. Consider approval of the 2019 - 2010 Liquor License Renewal Applications. 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President and Board members, before you tonight are the 2019-2010 retail liquor license 
renewals.  At this time I will read the type of license to be granted and issued along with the trade 
name.  Our Class “A” Beer are BP AM/PM Stateline Quik Shop and Walgreens.  The Class “A” 
Beer and “Class A” Liquor are Costco Wholesale #1198, Dream Liquor & Cigar, Target Store 
T2251.  Class “A” Beer and “Class A” cider are Kwik Trip 975, Kwik Trip 172, Kwik Trip 230 
and Pantry 41 Mobile.  Class “B” Beer is Chipotle Mexican Grill #2820.  Class “B” Beer and 
Class “C” Wine is Mod Super-Fast Pizza.  


 
Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor are Big Oaks Golf Club, Chancery Pub & Restaurant, 
Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen, #2087, Chili’s Grill & Bar, Fairfield Inn & Suites, Gordy’s Prairie 
Pub, Halter Wildlife, Honada Sushi & Hibachi, Iguana Wana Mexican Restaurant, Johnny’Z Pour 
House, Milwaukee Burger Company, the Olive Garden Restaurant #1845, Pinot’s Palette, 
Ruffolo’s Pizza, Starlite Club, Village Inn Supper Club and Wooden Nickel. 


 
As mentioned in the staff memo to the Village Board inspection and background checks were 
completed.  Also, checks were completed for outstanding taxes, fees, forfeitures and other 
outstanding fees due to the Village.  Based on that, I recommend approval of the 2019-2020 
license as presented to the Board contingent on the following items being completed by June 30, 
2019: payment of the license and publication fees, delinquent real estate or personal property 
taxes, delinquent invoices, delinquent utilities, any outstanding forfeitures, unpaid fire department 
inspections and/or re-inspection fees, completion of fire sprinkler or alarm tests, and compliance 
with any code violations.  In the memo sent to the Board and as part of the packet it did disclose 
different items affecting certain establishments.  So with that if you have any questions I’d be 
happy to answer. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Okay, this being a public hearing I’m going to open it up to public comment or question.  We 
have a signup sheet? 


 
Jane Snell: 
 


There were no signups for the public hearing. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anyone wishing to speak on this item?  Anyone wishing to speak on this item?  Anyone wishing 
to speak on this item?  Hearing none I’ll close the public hearing and open it up to Board 
comment or question. 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
3 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


You said the items in our packet will be addressed before it’s renewed? 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


That is correct.  I will send out notification to all establishments.  The letter will go out tomorrow, 
and it will have that disclosure on each and every one of their letters.  And the front desk will not 
allow any license to be issued.  They will come back to me, and then I will issue the license as 
long as those items have been satisfied. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I move approval subject to the improvements noted. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further comment or question?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


KLIMISH MOVED APPROVAL OF THE 2019-2020 LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 
AS STATED ON THE RECORD AND THE VILLAGE BOARD E-PACKET WITH THE 
ISSUANCE OF SAID LICENSE CONTINGENT UPON SATISFYING ANY OUTSTANDING 
FEES, FORFIETURES, TAXES (PERSONAL AND PROPERTY) DUE TO THE VILLAGE, 
INSPECTIONS AND ANY ZONING CONDITIONS; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION 
CARRIED 4-0.  
 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President, we did have one signup this evening.  It was Brian Massie. 
 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
4 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Okay.  Brian, please give us your name and address for the record. 
 
Brian Massie: 
 


Hi, my name is Brian Massie, 6930 39th Avenue, Kenosha.  I was here last month and talked 
about the cul-de-sac that needs to be in at the end of 82nd Street before I can build a single family 
residence on the property.  I’d ask that the Village consider doing this as a public works project 
instead of having the homeowner, myself, pay for the cul-de-sac.  And you guys were going to 
have a report done by Nathan which he did.  I thought it was going to be brought back up at this 
meeting but I guess it’s not. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Unfortunately we can’t comment on it, it’s not an item on the agenda. 
 
Brian Massie: 
 


That’s it. 
 


John Steinbrink: 
 


All right, thank you.  Anyone else under citizens’ comments? 
 
Jim Nels: 
 


Hi, Jim Nels, 11314 79th Street, Pleasant Prairie, the Chateau Eau Plaines subdivision.  We built 
our home in 1986.  Judy and I currently live here half of the year now.  We got back two weeks 
ago.  To the north of us, the Pinter [phonetic] family, Tim and Cassie Pinter, did a significant 
elevated pool project.  It took two summers to complete, and it changed elevation.  I’ve been 
working with elevation, there’s a significant drop off.  As we all know we’ve had a significant 
amount of rain.  Rain’s not the issue.  It’s the issue of whether or not there is an ordinance that 
controls sump pump discharge from one’s home onto a neighboring property. 


 
I’ve been working with since I’ve been back the last two weeks with Kurt Davidson.  He’s been 
extremely helpful.  He’s ended up in kind of the middle of a difficult situation.  The Pinter 
property when it was built was built by the Plaga’s [phonetic] back about 20 years ago.  Cassie 
Pinter is a Plaga, so Tim and Cassie bought the home from the Plagas.  Folker [phonetic] built the 
home.  When the home was built 20 plus years ago the building inspector at that time was Brad 
Stewart [phonetic].  He advised Plagas and Folker that the proper way to discharge the sump 
pump was to be in front of the house with the pipe facing east towards the lake to run it out to the 
road.  They put the sump pump to the south which is to Judy and I.  And that sump pump is 15 
feet from our lot line. 


 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
5 


When we left for Arizona the end of October Tim Pinter had assured me that he would bury the 
sump pump and run it out to the road as Kurt Davidson, the Village Engineer, one of the Village 
Engineers had told him.  When we got home Mike Bane [phonetic] had contacted me, our next 
door neighbor, the water ends up flowing when it gets discharged from the Pinter property to the 
Nels property it flows west to the Bane property.  The Bane property is a major league pond.  
That pond is now so big it is flowing even farther west onto the Jean Rubin [phonetic] property. 


 
So when Mike Bane contacted me in Arizona he advised that it hadn’t been buried.  So when I 
got back what happened this weekend is the Pinters had actually taken the sump pump and 
actually had the tile to within three feet of our property line.  This property was one of the last 
properties sold in the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  The Village Engineer years back when we built 
when I was looking at lots along with Brad Stewart said do not buy this particular property.  
Hypothetically it could be very well built on a spring.  It will be one of the last lots built on.  That 
was the case, it was one of the last lots built on.   


 
That sump pump was running yesterday every 15 seconds.  I spent an hour and a half in my 
backyard with the approval of my neighbor Mike Bane to build a ditch to release the water to go 
down to him.  I’ve got 30 and 40 foot high pine trees and evergreen trees.  I lost two of them 
about eight or nine years ago because of the high volume of water.  Randy Zirzanik [phonetic] did 
the work from Randy’s Landscape.  He has since retired.  At that time he was emphatic about 
getting that sump pump water from being discharged to our property.  So after I trenched 
yesterday with the approval of my neighbor Mike Bane we finally got the water relieved.  But his 
backyard is a major league pond.   


 
So in talking to Kurt he said at one time I believe there was an ordinance that covers how much 
sump pump water you can discharge onto a property.  It may have been rescinded at one time.  I 
think something has been working on.  So I’ve only been back for two weeks.  The proper way 
for the water to flow is exactly how Brad Stewart and the Village Engineer laid it out.  When we 
bought our home way back when there was very few homes.  He was emphatic about -- they gave 
us a diagram as to how water should flow.  It should flow -- where the Pinter property is it should 
go east to the road, it should turn right past the Centuri [phonetic] property.  When it passes the 
Centuri property it would pass the Nels property.  After passing Nels it would pass Banes.  It goes 
down to the corner to Conwells [phonetic] and there is a basin.  You can go to Conwells and 
you’ll see it’s very dry down there.  You go into Bane’s backyard it is a pond. 


 
So I had reached pretty much the point of saturation.  I want the Village involved.  I had a 
personal commitment from Tim Pinter last fall that he wants to maintain a good relationship with 
our neighbors.  It has been very tension.  We’re good people.  And when I come back and not 
only has the sump pump tile been trenched and run out to the property line, it has been just put 
right on our lot line yesterday, and they pumped water for 16 hours nonstop.  So I know you can’t 
open this up for comments.  I can come back here tomorrow morning and ask for Matt who is the 
Village Engineer.  I can come back and ask to see John to initiate this process.  But I want to 
know exactly what the ordinance is and what course of action can be taken.  I don’t want 
anymore water discharged onto my property.  Thank you. 


 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
6 


John Steinbrink: 
 


You have everybody’s attention.  I believe Jean is taking notes, correct? 
 
Jim Nels: 
 


Thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Okay, we will be in touch.  Anyone else under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none I’ll close 
citizens’ comments. 


 
7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


So the one item that I just wanted to address with the Village Board was an update last week.  
Kathy and I had the opportunity to go and visit in Madison with our Legislators and actually 
present AB235, a bill to address the We Energies’ power plant closure and the reduction in utility 
state aids.  It was a positive experience.  We’ll keep you abreast as that bill continues to move 
forward.  We’re hoping that there will be a Senate companion bill shortly.  But it was for the most 
part a good experience.  So we’re looking forward to seeing that progress continue.  And that’s all 
I have. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right, thank you, Nathan. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Consider approval of Resolution #19-19 to initiate the a Zoning Text Amendment to 


establish specific conditional use requirements related to the distribution of retail or 
wholesale merchandise manufactured or stored within a building located in the M-5, 
Production Manufacturing District. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, Resolution 19-19 is the resolution to initiate a Zoning 
Text Amendment to the M-5 District.  The Board can initiate changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
including zoning district boundaries or changes in the text.  And the purpose of the resolution is 
to introduce a text amendment to the M-5 so that it’s intended to provide for manufacturing, 
assembly, office, research and development uses with limited warehouse and distribution uses 
with some modifications.  And we’d like to introduce a modification or a change to the ordinance.  
Whereas the retail or wholesale of merchandise manufacturing or stored within the building 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
7 


provided that the retail or wholesale is not classified as a high hazard group H pursuant to Section 
305 of 2006 IBC.  


 
 We are requesting and recommending that this be allowed with the approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit if the Plan Commission approves it and the Village Board does as well.  The Village 
staff is proposing to establish and draft certain standards for the Plan Commission to grant a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow certain uses in the M-5.  And so we are requesting this evening 
that the Board approve this resolution to initiate the process by which the M-5 District can be 
promptly evaluated through a CUP modification and a subset of conditions for the granting of a 
Conditional Use Permit.  The Trustees at this meeting are not approving this resolution and, in 
fact, approving the ordinance change at this time, but only the resolution to initiate the process by 
which the ordinance can be evaluated, a public hearing can be held by the Plan Commission, and 
then the approval could be considered by the Village Board. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’d move approval of Resolution 19-19 and set it for a public hearing, and I look forward to 
hearing what the recommendations are. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Is there further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-19 TO INITIATE THE A ZONING 
TEXT AMENDMENT TO ESTABLISH SPECIFIC CONDITIONAL USE REQUIREMENTS 
RELATED TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF RETAIL OR WHOLESALE MERCHANDISE 
MANUFACTURED OR STORED WITHIN A BUILDING LOCATED IN THE M-5, 
PRODUCTION MANUFACTURING DISTRICT; SECONDED BY POLLCOFF; MOTION 
CARRIED 4-0.  







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
8 


 
 B. Consider approval of the First Amendment of the Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 


Agreement between HSA Acquisitions, Inc. and the Village of Pleasant Prairie for 
the 68 acres in Bristol.  


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Thank you, Mr. President and Trustees.  Before you tonight is the Amendment 1 to the PSA 
which we entered into with HSA Acquisitions, Inc. last October.  The intent was the sale of 
property that the Village owns that is located within the Village of Bristol, approximately 68.4 
acres.  This amendment basically addresses three main issues.  Primarily the due diligence period 
was established, and there was one extension, a 120 day extension which expires June 15th.  And 
so in order for us to continue to keep the land under contract this is the primary reason for 
bringing this amendment before you. 


 
It does address three primary issues.  One, it clarifies the purchase price to be based on what was 
originally intended, the 68.4 acres.  In the original language it was gross acreage or gross square 
feet.  And that included the 33 feet of right of way within the County Q or County U.  County U, 
sorry, correct, County U.  And then also adjusting the due diligence period to be October 15th.  
This extension is necessary for three primary reasons.  We’re still waiting on PSC approvals for 
the water main extension.  We’re also waiting for an agreement between the County, Bristol and 
HSA for intersection improvements at County C and U.  And then finally the execution of a 
development agreement between HSA and Bristol. 


 
Finally, there is one modification.  Originally the closing period after the due diligence period 
was 30 days after, and now that has been extended to 60 days.  I would recommend moving 
forward with this amendment.  Tim Thompson who represents HSA is here in the audience.  
Should you have any questions I’m sure he’d be more than willing to com forward.   


 
One item, too, in the packet what was originally presented was missing and additional paragraph 
that in discussions between the two attorneys was added recently in part because we wanted to 
demonstrate that there has been progress made in the sale of this property.  If you’ve reviewed the 
amendment it basically outlines all the same contingencies or conditions that was in the due 
diligence period originally.   


 
And so to alleviate any questions about whether or not we’ve made progress during this period 
they added this paragraph, and I’ll just read it into the record.  The purchases acknowledges that 
as of the date of this amendment purchaser has accomplished the following: One, amended the 
Land Use Plan with the Village to add business park to office, received a zoning classification 
change from the Village, and when we refer to the Village I would note that it’s the Village of 
Bristol, to add business park.  Three, received approval of the Certified Survey Map for received 
site plan approval from the Village for Phase 1 of the purchaser’s project.  Five, received 
landscape plan approval from the Village.   


 
Six, received open space approval from the Village.  Seven, received access approvals from the 
Village.  Eight, commenced and continues negotiations with the developer’s agreement with the 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
9 


Village.  Nine, commenced discussions with the County of Kenosha regarding intersections 
improvements.  Ten, established a tax increment tax district.  Eleven, submitted a traffic impact 
analysis for the purchaser’s project.  Nothing contained in this paragraph five shall limit, restrict, 
or otherwise affect the purchaser’s right under contract as amended by this amendment including 
without limitation under Section 3.2 or 3.3 of the contract as amended by this amendment. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I move to approve the PSA as presented in the additional language read into the record. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’ll second it with a question.  The 33 feet that the County is going to take that’s going to go all 
the way south to 104th I would assume eventually. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Eventually correct.  And that will be conditioned on other development taking place.  So Bristol 
currently has discussions with developer Janco.  And there is some discussion about acquisition 
on the east side of County U.  And, in fact, the County has requested more -- the 33 feet are 
currently existing right of way.  It just so happens that it wasn’t right of way that was specifically 
outlined.  And so when we talk about gross all of a sudden that’s where that land changed.  Really 
if you took the gross currently it would be close to 70 plus acres versus 68.4.  The County is still 
requiring additional right of way feet besides that 33 feet.  They’re requiring an additional 25 feet. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


And the improvements at U and C is that roundabout in the future? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Not right now.  At this time they’re talking about an intersection with traffic lights.  In fact, can 
we invite Tim, he drove all the way up here, I’d hate for him not to at least say hello.  Tim, if you 
want to add anything to what I presented that would be wonderful.  Come to the microphone, 
Tim, and just introduce yourself and read your address into the record. 


 
Tim Thompson: 
 


My name is Tim Thompson with HSA Commercial.  Nathan has been wonderful to work with 
and we thank you.  We’re looking forward to the project.  We have a lot of time, energy and 
money into it so far in our pursuit costs.  It’s unfortunate we need to ask for the extension, but it’s 
just the process has worked getting through Bristol.  And hopefully you’ll accept it and agree to it 
and move on and close in late October or close I guess would be beginning of December, mid 
December. 


 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
10 


Nathan Thiel: 
 


I would add Bristol is not completely -- PSC also has been somewhat -- 
 
Tim Thompson: 
 


Right. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Partly because originally the intent was to do wholesale water sales.  When we spoke with PSC 
they would prefer us to review retail.  And so that kind of changed the calculations of timing with 
the PSC. 


 
Tim Thompson: 
 


Correct, correct.  So if there are any questions I’d be happy to answer them. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I think the requirement with PSC that’s a significant change.  I don’t know that it -- really the 
Village is making a significant investment to get everything ready there.  And the Village of 
Bristol is able to rely on those investments.  By the PSC saying, well, Pleasant Prairie you do the 
retail, let the developers pay for the improvements and Bristol sits back and lets the development 
happen.  I think it either shows a lack of understanding by the PSC or a small level of arrogance 
that they can dictate what happens between municipalities for a settlement that obviously is not 
the best. But on the other hand we want the development to occur and that’s good for everybody 
so that’s where we’re at.  I think that Nathan was -- leave it to me to be the fart at the party, but he 
described it in a better way.  But that was a significant not derailment, but it really held the timing 
back to make that happen. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


In the end even though it could be questionable of who is responsible for what, I still think that 
doing retail versus wholesale is probably a cleaner system than the wholesale would have been.  
It definitely will require less infrastructure which will be a benefit to the end user.  It doesn’t 
necessarily -- ideally in a perfect world and anytime boundaries come into play it becomes 
somewhat difficult of whose responsibility is it to provide utility and infrastructure.  And that’s 
been a discussion in this area for a while so I don’t need to belabor that topic. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anything else?  Any questions?  If not, thank you. 
 
 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
11 


Tim Thompson: 
 


Thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We’ve got a motion and a second.  Further discussion?  We have a motion and a second.  Those 
in favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE THE FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE 
PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE AGREEMENT BETWEEN HSA ACQUISITIONS, 
INC. AND THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE FOR THE 68 ACRES IN BRISTOL; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 C. Consider approval of Ordinance #19-09 to amend Chapter 165 of the Municipal 


Code as it relates to traffic officers. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Good evening, Mr. President and members of the Board.  This item comes up as we tried to make 
some changes in our parking enforcement officer.  So we had that parking enforcement officer, 
we kind of changed that position into a community service officer.  And with that we kind of 
opened it up for discussion amongst the staff at the PD and what other duties and responsibilities 
would go good with this position.  One of the ideas we came up with was to have this individual 
allowed to do traffic control for us.  Not traffic enforcement, traffic control which would be 
helping us out at an accident scene, helping us out at special events.  We started to look at this, 
and by state law we can do that, and I can assign as necessary individuals to assist us with traffic 
control as long as there’s a municipal ordinance which covers that.  So that’s the change, that’s 
the reason behind the change as we move forward with the CSO position.  So that’s what’s in 
front of you tonight. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Chief, I agree with this.  And the only thing I question, and I’m not questioning you on this, is I 
don’t know that we’re authorized to have the CSO car have red lights or blue lights on it because 
that would identify him as a sworn officer. 


 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
12 


Chief Smetana: 
 


Correct, it would not be able to have red and blue lights. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


But I wish they would pass some type of law statewide allowing him to have red lights no 
different than a tow truck has to show some type of emergency that people are coming upon 
instead of just the amber lights. 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Yeah, the amber lights, the odd thing about the state rule and the municipal ordinance is I could 
assign -- with the Chief’s permission I could assign firefighters direct traffic, too, with that.  I 
think we’ve got enough emergency lighting on that vehicle to make it noticeable.  And I’m 
clearly not going to put our community service officer in a position that would bring some harm 
to that individual or some liability to the Village. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I had other concerns with the CSO as well.  Do they have any means of self-protection, not a 
firearm? 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Yes, we’ve authorized the CSO to carry OC spray.  So we put that individual through training on 
that so they’re allowed to do that at this point. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Okay, good. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


And if you look at other CSO positions throughout the state some are allowed to carry a baton, 
some are allowed to carry a chemical like OC spray.  We chose to go with the OC spray at this 
point.  The individual that we’ve got in this position is a former Marine, and she comes trained 
from the Marine Corps on being able to carry those duties out.  She was an MP in the service. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


A lot of people don’t realize that the CSO may end up taking a vehicle from somebody that 
probably their only means of transportation, the only ownership they have and they’re going to 
take that vehicle that could become a dangerous situation. 


 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
13 


Chief Smetana: 
 


Right.  Parking violations, too, can become contentious.  So we want to make sure that not only 
does that individual in that position have the communication needs to get in contact with our 
officers immediately, but to have at least an initial or rudimentary amount of tools at her disposal. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’d move approval of the Ordinance 19-09. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Mike? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I think this is a good idea.  How many hours do we have budgeted for the -- 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Twenty eight. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Twenty eight.  Do you see that increasing? 
 


Chief Smetana: 
 


At some point it’s possible.  Because of this particular CSO’s talents I think we could grow that 
position.  And it really becomes dependent on who you’ve got in the spot.  She comes with a 
unique set of skills and talents.  So far she’s working out fantastic so I have no issues with adding 
some additional duties and responsibilities onto it other than parking enforcement.  I think it’s a 
great benefit for the Village as well. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


And I think it really helps us get some things done without having a uniform officer tied up with 
that work. 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Correct.  The position is only going to grow. 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
14 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Chief, how does that different from an auxiliary officer?  What can he do? 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


An auxiliary officer would actually have some police powers.  This position does not.  If I’m 
thinking of a part-time officer or an auxiliary officer they may actually have some police powers.  
It depends how you set it up.  There is not set definition of an auxiliary officer.  You’d have to set 
that up on your own.  I could rename this position auxiliary officer.  I don’t want the confusion in 
there between what this role is, and this role is community service officer which I think the duties 
and responsibilities we’ve given that position and we’ve worked into it and we’ve got in our mind 
to move forward, I think it’s that role.  Parking enforcement, I think the CSO position is definitely 
more of a better definition and a clearer position. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Even with the auxiliary it’s also the individual. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Correct, very much so. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Not all the same. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Right. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Any further questions for the Chief? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


No, just a comment, one to Mike.  We did recently hire a code enforcement officer, and the intent 
was also to provide some alleviation to the CSO.  And so just to be cognizant of that change that 
took place this year. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anything else for the Chief?  If not, thank you, Chief. 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
15 


Chief Smetana: 
 


Thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE ORDINANCE #19-09 TO AMEND CHAPTER 165 OF 
THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS IT RELATES TO TRAFFIC OFFICERS; SECONDED BY 
KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 D. Consider approval of Resolution #19-18 certifying the creation, review and adoption 


of the Compliance Maintenance Reports for the Wastewater Facilities. 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this evening I have before you the Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report known is the industry as CMAR.  It’s the state code for publically 
and privately owned domestic wastewater treatment works.  The CMAR is a self-evaluation tool 
that promotes the owner's awareness and responsibility for wastewater collection, treatment 
needs, measures the performance of a wastewater treatment works during a calendar year, and 
assesses its level of compliance with permit requirements.   


 
Pleasant Prairie has been evaluated under the state’s annual compliance maintenance evaluation 
and financial management and scored a four with a GPA of four.  Wastewater facilities for the 
Village have received a raw score of 12 with a GPA of four, and the collection system has 
received a grade A as set forth by the Department of Natural Resources lettering.  It is 
recommended that the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie review and accept as 
presented the annual Compliance Maintenance Report, and we will forward that to the 
Department of Natural Resources for their review and acceptance.  And so with that I can answer 
any questions you may have. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I move we approve the 2018 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report as presented and direct it 
be filed with the state. 


 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
16 


Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any questions? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


If you really want a comment, I actually at some point I just want to commend our wastewater 
treatment.  My father recently had an experience.  He’s currently in Russia and had a story to tell 
about his experience.  And so I just want to pat ourselves on the back and say we never realize the 
blessings we have until they’re not there. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


I think year after year we’ve done pretty good with it. 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


Yes, we do.  We always score very strong financially.  Kathy Goessl, our Finance Director, does 
a great job managing the utility and watching the rates.  And then from a compliance of an 
operation and maintenance standpoint we do very well.  So thank you very much. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


With that there’s a motion.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-18 CERTIFYING THE 
CREATION, REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE REPORTS 
FOR THE WASTEWATER FACILITIES; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 
4-0. 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
17 


 E. Consider approval of Towing License Renewal Applications. 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President and Board members, before you tonight are the annual towing service license.  
Applications were submitted for the following entities: Firehouse Performance, LLC, J & M 
Towing, Jantz Auto Sales, Inc., Jantz Yard 4 Automotive, Inc., Jensen Towing, Atlas Service 
Center dba McDevitt’s Towing and Pro Towing.  All applications as submitted comply with 
Section 332 of the Municipal Code, and the license fees have been paid.  There were no 
outstanding delinquencies or forfeitures, and background checks have been completed.  I 
recommend approval of the seven applicants and their businesses for the issuance of towing 
service licenses for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 subject to the provisions of 
Section 332 of the Municipal Code. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move approval for the towing renewals. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Chief, quick question, do we do all these on a rotation? 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Okay. 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Were you referring to the background checks, or were you referring to when they’re called for 
service? 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


When they’re called. 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


And storage is done by who, all of them? 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
18 


 
[Inaudible] 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Is storage part of the application? 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Storage is done by Jensen.  So our police storage if we have an evidence hold it’s done by Jensen. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Everybody takes all their cars to Jensen Storage? 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


When we have an evidence hold on it yes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Thank you, Chief.  We have a motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 
KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE 2019-2020 TOWING SERVICE LICENSE 


RENEWAL APPLICATIONS AS PRESENTED ON THE RECORD; SECONDED BY SERPE; 
MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I have a comment.  Over the weekend there was at least two neighborhood garage sales so I 
talked to a lots of different residents.  I have compliments to pass onto public works in both 
neighborhoods or at least in the one neighborhood.  Narrow streets, no parking signs were set up 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
19 


several days before the garage sale.  Garbage was supposed to be picked up on Saturday.  And 
like public works does every year garbage was picked up the preceding day to make room for a 
busy Saturday garage sale.  So the residents in several neighborhoods passed along compliments 
to what you guys do consistently every year.  It’s booked out 12 months ahead.  You’re already 
working on the 2020 schedule for getting that neighborhood garage sale worked out. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Did you get any bargains, Dave? 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I bought a clock for a dollar. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


With a new battery. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anything else on Village Board comments? 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move to adjourn. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
 
 







Village Board Minutes 
June 3, 2019 
 


 
20 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 
SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; 


MOTION CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETNG ADJOURNED AT 6:52 P.M. 
 







   
 


8600 Green Bay Road • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-2709 • Phone 262.925.6765 • Fax 262.694.2941 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 


 


Office of the Director of Public Works 
John Steinbrink Jr., P.E. 


MEMORANDUM 


To: Village  Board of Trustees 


From: John Steinbrink, Jr., P.E., Director of Public Works 


Subject: The Cottages at Village Green Phase 2 Letter of Credit Reduction Request No. 4 


Date: June 10, 2019 


 


The Village has conducted a review of the Letter of Credit Reduction for Public Improvements at the Cottages 
at Village Green and recommends approval of reduction in the subdivision letter of credit based on review of 
project progress and the following considerations: 


 Current posted security 
 Work Completed to date and conformance to plans and specifications 
 Field visits by Village of Pleasant Prairie Staff, Inspection reports/Engineer’s report, if applicable 
 Estimated costs of work remaining 


 
Village Construction Inspection staff have reviewed the request and based on inspection of the site and the 
construction observation reports, I am recommending reduction as follows to the letter of credit: 


Letter of Credit Balance as of May 10, 2019 $1,266,803.29 


Estimated Balance to Complete Project $733,188.86 


Retainage held for Reduction #3 $-10,204.49 


Total Retainage of Public Improvement held to date. $59,425.48 


Value of LOC to hold $1,074,772.28 


Letter of Credit Reduction Recommended $192,031.01 


 
 
 
Based on the review of the criteria, the proposed improvements meet the requirements of the Village and a 
letter of credit reduction request is warranted and recommended.   


 







COTTAGES PHASE 2 6/7/2019 Worksheet Summary


Letter of Credit Reduction Worksheet ORIGINAL Letter of Credit (LOC) Amount $2,176,863.26


Pleasant Prairie, WI                                    Total LOC reduction $1,102,090.98


CURRENT LOC BALANCE AFTER THIS REDUCTION $1,074,772.28


Developer's Requested Reduction Amount $192,031.01


Total Payout to developer this application $192,031.01


Total Retainage held this application -$                              


Draw Date 3/11/19 4/2/19 5/10/19 6/7/19
Responsible Party Construction Item STATUS Original Cost Estimate


#1 #2                  #3                            #4                            
Construction    TO-DATE BALANCE of LOC 


held
Reesman's Exc&Gr Sanitary Sewer Partial Reduction $146,350.00 $100,555.50 $4,670.60 $25,115.00 $9,900.00 $140,241.10 $6,108.90 
Reesman's Exc&Gr Watermain Partial Reduction $319,033.00 $17,160.00 $195,670.75 $104,430.40 $1,771.85 $319,033.00 $0.00 
Reesman's Exc&Gr Storm Sewer Partial Reduction $287,315.00 $91,427.70 $190,225.10 $4,534.00 $286,186.80 $1,128.20 
Reesman's Exc&Gr Public Grading/Roadway Partial Reduction $915,564.41 $100,250.00 $26,381.00 $97,545.00 $142,510.68 $366,686.68 $548,877.73 
Village DPW Sanitary Sewer & Storm Cleaning and Televising Estimate No Reduction Requested $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 
Village DPW Street signage - Village of Pleasant Prairie No Reduction Requested $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 
Village/CM Dept. Village Inspections No Reduction Requested $133,460.99 $3,198.75 $14,157.50 $17,356.25 $116,104.74 
NMB staking/layout/survey NMB Construction staking,layout,survey Partial Reduction $49,800.00 $5,891.15 $17,168.99 $7,171.74 $30,231.88 $19,568.12 
WeEnergies Street lights No Reduction Requested $4,437.14 $0.00 $4,437.14 
Breezy Hill Street Trees No Reduction Requested $22,964.03 $0.00 $22,964.03 


Construction Cost Estimate $1,892,924.57 


Contingency 15% No Reduction Requested $283,938.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,780.75 $1,780.75 $282,157.94 


TOTAL $2,176,863.26 $223,856.65 $318,150.05 $437,683.24 $181,826.52 $1,161,516.46 $1,015,346.80 


DISBURSEMENT/REDUCTION #1 #2                  #3                            #4                            Disbursements  TO-DATE BALANCE of LOC 
held


TOTAL $2,176,863.26 $223,856.65 $318,150.05 $437,683.24 $181,826.52 $1,161,516.46 $1,015,346.80 
RETENTION (to be held until warranty expires) 10%  $                 (22,385.67)  $                 (31,815.01)  $           (15,429.30)  $               10,204.49  $                                                                          (59,425.48) $59,425.48 
Disbursment amount $201,470.99 $286,335.05 $422,253.94 $192,031.01 $1,102,090.98 $1,074,772.28 


Change Orders (SUPPLEMENT)


Net dispersment after change orders $2,176,863.26 $201,470.99 $286,335.05 $422,253.94 $192,031.01 $1,102,090.98 $1,074,772.28 

















































		June 17, 2019 Village Board Agenda

		4A. Public Hearing - Resolution #19-20

		Illustration

		Res 19-20



		7A. and B.  Ord 19-13 and Ord 19-14

		Ord #19-13

		Ord #19-14

		CSM 2893-Prairie Holdings East

		2019-03-04 ACOE AJD

		2019-08-02 DNR-Wetland Exemption Letter

		Comp Plan Amendment Application

		Zoning Map Amendment Application



		7C.  Ta Chen CSM

		CSM Comments

		CSM Application

		CSM 





		7D.  Lot Line Adjustment

		Request



		7E.   Ord 19-15

		Ord 19-15



		7F.  Vista at Creekside Partial Releases

		1-Partial Release of Variance Grant 94-020

		Variance 94-020



		2-Parital Release of Waiver of Special Assessment Notice

		May 2000 Waiver of Special Assessment



		3-Partial Release of Variance Grant 05-04

		Variance 05-04



		4-Partial Release of Stipulated Shoreland Permit #05-04

		Stipulated Shoreland Permit 05-04



		5-Partial Release of Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants and Easements

		Declaration of Restictions Covenants and Easements



		6-Partial Release of 2005 Development Agreement

		2005 Development Agreement



		7-Partial Release of 2007 Development Agreement

		2007 Development Agreement





		7G. Consent Agenda Items

		June 3, 2019 Village Board Minutes

		Letter of Credit Reduction No 4 Memo - The Cottages










